
 

1 

 

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

Executive Oversight Committee 

Agenda 

March 11, 2021 

8:00 a.m.  

Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83750789884 

 

 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority Meeting Procedures Statement  

On March 16, 2020, Governor Pritzker issued Executive Order. No. 5 in response to COVID-19, 

which temporary suspended certain requirements of the Open Meetings Act ILCS 120 allowing 

Executive Oversight Committee members to participate electronically in Executive Oversight 

Committee meetings. The Public is welcome to observe and participate in all meetings of the 

Executive Oversight Committee. Meetings are able to be viewed using the link 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83750789884  or by calling (312) 626-6799 and using the Meeting 

ID: 837 5078 9884. All public comments received during the meeting will be read into the record 

during the appropriate portion of the agenda. 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Public Comment 

 

5. Award Recognition 

 

The President of the Central States Water Environmental Association (CSWEA), Mark 

Eddington, Executive Director of the Kishwaukee Water Reclamation District, will be 

presenting the CSWEA 2020 Operations Award to Jason Neighbors, Operator 1 at GWA, 

and the 2020 Water Stewardship Award to Matt Streicher.  Since the usual awards 

ceremony was not allowed to take place last year, CSWEA would like to formally 

recognize the award winners at their respective public meetings.   

 

6. Consent Agenda – The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive 

Oversight Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below: 

 

Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for part 

of the months of January 2021 $987,162.57 and February 2021 $235,228.62 (Trustee 

Christiansen). 

 

6.1 Vouchers Previously Reviewed by: 

January 2021 and February 2021 – Trustee Christiansen 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83750789884
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83750789884


 

2 

 

6.2 Forklift Purchase 

 

The Authority has budgeted $48,000 for the replacement of unit 612, a 1998 

Daewoo Forklift.  Existing unit 612 is past it’s useful service life and is need of 

replacement.  The Village of Glen Ellyn’s Fleet Superintendent is agreement with 

this assessment.  

 

The Authority staff is requesting your authorization to provide Illinois Material 

Handling (Woltergroup, LLC) with a notice to proceed in the amount of 

$32,646.00 billed to 40-570155 Vehicles and Equipment Replacement.   

 

6.3 Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Contract Award 

 

During the month of February, GWA placed an advertisement for bid for a three-

year contract for the removal and disposal of municipal bio-solids from the main 

Glenbard plant.  At the bid opening date on February 26, 2018 at 12:00pm, there 

were seven registered plan holders.  At the bid opening GWA received three bid 

packets.  The TAC and the Authority recommend to the EOC to motion to 

Authorize the award of the three-year contract for Disposal of Municipal Bio-

Solids to Synagro for the amount of $19.20 per cubic yard for the three-year 

contract.   

 

 6.4 Approval to Purchase CHP Spare Parts 

 

In 2015, GWA purchased 2 CHP generators. These generators are designed to run 

24/7 and with running at this frequency, consumable parts need replacement fairly 

often. Each year funds are budgeted for consumable items. These items include 

oil filters, air filters, oil separators, gas filters, sparkplugs and valve cover gaskets. 

Recent inventory of existing parts revealed lower than desired quantities of these 

essential consumables.  

 

The approved 2016 purchasing policy item C.1.f. defines Standardization 

purchases, as “technical in nature of certain items or services may result in the 

standardization of a particular supplier’s specifications being necessary or 

desirable to Village operations. Competitive bidding may be waived if the Village 

requires compatibility with existing software, machinery or other existing 

equipment.” Therefore, it is being requested to provide Nissen Energy with a 

notice to proceed for the amount of $28,426.78. Nissen Energy is the 

manufacturer of the CHP generators and guarantees compatibility of the 

consumables with the existing equipment. Funds will be sourced from budget line 

item 270-520975.  Nissen has agreed to provide a 10% discount and free shipping 

for all the parts. 

 



 

3 

 

 

6.5 Ratification of February 4, 2021 Phone Poll Items 

 

6.5.1 Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes: 

November 19, 2020 EOC Meeting 

 

6.5.2 Vouchers Previously Reviewed by: 

November and December 2020 – Trustee Christiansen 

 

6.5.3 Request for Authorization to continue into Year 1 of 3 of the Janitorial 

Services Contract with Vega Building Maintenance. 

 

GWA requests waiver of bids and authorization to continue into year one of 

the three-year contract for Janitorial Services with RCC Cleaning for $13,780, 

and shall be invoiced to Fund 270-520971 in CY2021 

 

6.5.4 Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Flow Monitoring 

Services Contract with RJN Group, Inc. 

 

GWA requests waiver of bids and authorization to continue into year two of 

the three-year contract for Flow Monitoring Services with the RJN Group, 

Inc.  The amount of $132,000 shall be invoiced to Fund 270-520981 in 

CY2021. 

 

6.5.5 Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Sodium Thiosulfate 

Supply Contract with PVS Chemical. 

 

GWA requests waiver of bids and authorization to continue into year two of 

the three-year contract for the Sodium Thiosulfate Supply Contract with PVS 

Chemical at $2.59/gallon, and shall be invoiced to Fund 270-1-530440 in 

CY2021 

 

6.5.6 Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Sodium Hypochlorite 

Supply Contract with Alexander Chemical Corporation. 

 

GWA requests waiver of bids and authorization to continue into year two of 

the three-year contract for the Sodium Hypochlorite Supply Contract with 

Alexander Chemical Corporation at $0.7101/gallon, and shall be invoiced to 

Fund 270-520981 in CY2021 

  

6.5.7 Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 5 of 5 of the Lease of 

Atmospheric Vaporizers and Airgas Liquid Oxygen Hauling Agreement 

 

GWA requests waiver of bids and authorization to continue into year four of 

the five-year contract for the leasing of atmospheric vaporizers and liquid 

oxygen hauling with Airgas in CY2021.  Starting in April 2021 Liquid 



 

4 

 

Oxygen hauling will be priced at $0.282/per 100 cubic feet with a base 

delivery charge of $15,600, and invoiced to Fund 270-530443 in the CY2021 

Budget.  Atmospheric Vaporizers Leasing will be priced at $1,500/month, and 

invoiced to Fund 40 Capital Plan in the CY2021 Budget.   

 

This contract is set to expire in April 2022, and therefore both the supply of 

liquid oxygen and the atmospheric vaporizer leasing will be rebid out next 

calendar year to obtain competitive pricing.   

 

6.5.8 Contract Laboratory Services Open Purchase Order Request 

 

The Authority Staff would like to request waiving of competitive bidding 

requirements per the Village of Glen Ellyn code, 1-10-2: EXCEPTIONS TO 

COMPETITIVE BIDDING. Per Administrative Order No. 3 Section “D” 

Professional Services – Section 3 the Authority is required to seek at least three 

competitive proposals. The request provides support that the Authority has 

gathered and evaluated three competitive proposals from qualified laboratories. 

 

This request is made due to the specific requirements that need to be met in order 

for the Authority to properly test our Influent, Effluent, Anaerobic Digester and 

Land Applied Biosolids samples per the IEPA and EPA specifications. With the 

EOC’s approval, a purchase order will be created under O&M account 270-

520806 – Professional Services Laboratory Support for a not to exceed budgeted 

amount of $25,000 to be utilized during the 2021 calendar year. 

 

7. Authorize GWA to Approve Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) Low Interest Loan Agreement for Biosolids Dewatering 

Improvements Project 

 

At the June 2020 EOC Meeting, the EOC approved the application for an IEPA SRF Low 

Interest Loan for the purposes of funding the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements 

Project.  After the bids for the project were received, and the notice of intent to award 

was approved by the EOC, the final application documents were sent to the IEPA.   

 

GWA recently received the enclosed paperwork providing notification that the loan has 

been approved in the amount of $2,490,750 at a 1.35% simple annual interest rate.  The 

loan is a 20-year term with semi-annual repayments, which will begin after the project 

has reached substantial completion.  At this time, the project is expected to commence in 

late March/early April, with a substantial completion date in fall 2021. 

 

The Authority respectfully requests the EOC motion to authorize GWA to enter into the 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) State Revolving Fund (SRF) Low 

Interest Loan Agreement in the amount of $2,490,750 at a 1.35% simple annual interest 

rate.   

 



 

5 

 

8. Authorize GWA to approve Notice of Award and Agreement to Independent Mechanical 

Industries for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project 

 

After a public bid opening was performed, the EOC authorized the approval of the Notice 

of Intent to Award the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Construction Contract to 

Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. for $2,085,000.00 at the November 19, 2020 

EOC Meeting.  The notice of intent to award was required in order to submit the final 

loan application for the IEPA SRF Low Interest Loan that is planned to be used to 

finance the project.   

 

Providing item number 7 on this agenda is approved by the EOC, the TAC and the 

Authority recommend the EOC to motion to authorize the approval of the Notice of 

Award and Agreement for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Construction 

Contract to Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,000.00.  

 

9. Electric Supply Procurement 

 

The Authority’s Electric Supply contract expires February, 2022, at which time the 

existing contract would automatically revert to the default supplier, ComEd.  Typically, 

electric supply can be procured for cheaper rates.  This could result in significant price 

increases for the Authority unless a new contract is secured prior to the existing 

contract’s expiration.  Due to the rapid market changes and the inability to secure prices 

for not much more than a day, it would be in the best interest of the Authority and the 

EOC if the Executive Director were able to secure prices when they appear to be at their 

lowest point. Therefore, following the success of the EOC approved Natural Gas and 

Electricity procurement practice utilized in October/November 2014, July 2017, and 

again most recently with Natural Gas in 2020, the Authority is requesting that the 

Executive Director be provided the ability to secure prices for Electric Supply when they 

appear to be at their lowest point. The selection process as requested is outlined below: 

 

1. Receive quotes from all qualified Electric suppliers. 

2. Identify and confirm the lowest three- or four-year contract prices. 

3. Have legal do a review of the contract. 

4. The Executive Director will sign the contract documents. 

5. Contract Documents and Information about the Electric supplier presented to 

the EOC in the consent agenda at the next scheduled EOC meeting. 

 

This process provides the Authority with the best means to acquire the lowest pricing in 

the most efficient manner.  This information was also previously described to the EOC at 

the September 2020 meeting when the Natural Gas contract was secured.  The TAC is 

agreement with this approach, as it allows the Authority to capitalize on market 

opportunities.  It is requested that the EOC motion to authorize the Executive Director to 

secure Electric supply when rates are at or below our existing rate of $0.0436/kWh 

(transmission fees not included). 

 

 



 

6 

 

10. Discussion  

10.1 Capital Improvement Projects Update 

10.2 High Strength Waste Receiving SOP’s 

 

11. Other Business 

11.1 Technical Advisory Committee Updates 

 

12. Next EOC Meeting – The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday, 

April 8, 2021 at 8:00 a.m. via Zoom. 

 



0
1
2
3
4
5

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021N
um

be
r o

f V
io

la
tio

ns
NPDES Permit Violations

Glenbard

Stormwater

Glenbard Plant: *Current Record Stormwater Facility:
2946 Days February 4, 2013 through January 31, 2021 1050 Days April 15, 2018 through January 31, 2021
Previous excursion free operating record: Current excursion free operating record:
1058 Days September 8, 2007 – April 10, 2010 1140 Days July 11, 2009 through August 27, 2012 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan-19 Mar-19 May-19 Jul-19 Sep-19 Nov-19 Jan-20 Mar-20 May-20 Jul-20 Sep-20 20-Nov 21-Jan

Flow Billing Comparison

Rain Amt Glen Ellyn % Lombard %

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan
Glen Ellyn % 43.5669 38.1926 39.7689 37.9926 38.464 44.1141 45.2611 42.76693 39.6144 43.22 43.01282 40.0011 39.6412 43.931 42.3567 47.418 47.7942 42.7287 46.0736 48.4668 43.5073 43.3642 45.0223 44.7414 44.6336
Lombard % 56.4331 61.8074 60.2311 62.0074 61.535 55.8859 54.7389 57.23307 60.3856 56.7761 56.98718 59.9989 60.3588 56.069 57.6433 52.582 52.2058 57.2713 53.9264 51.5332 56.4927 56.6358 54.9777 55.2586 55.3664
Rain Amt 0.66 3.385 2.48 6.33 9.545 3.355 5.74 3.905 7.345 6.59 2.01 1.45 2.24 0.76 3.615 2.91 8.265 4.44 2.84 0.4 3.46 4.15 1.88 2.02 1.14



CY2017 CY2018 CY2019 CY2020 CY2021
Billion Gallons Treated Per Year

as of January 31, 2021 0.33 0.27 0.33 0.39 0.26

0.00
0.05
0.10
0.15
0.20
0.25
0.30
0.35
0.40
0.45

Billion Gallons Treated Per Year as of 
January 31, 2021                                      

CY2017 CY2018 CY2019 CY2020 CY2021
Total Rainfall in Inches as of

January 31, 2021 2.84 1.87 0.66 2.24 1.14

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

Total Rainfall in Inches as of 
January 31, 2021



The Authority Key Performance Indicators Regarding Safety and Neighborhood Impacts 

0

2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Injuries + Lost Time

Days Lost
Injuries

0 0 0 0
01
23
45
67
89

101112131415161718192021222324252627282930

Odor
Complaints

Mosquitoes Noise/Truck
Traffic

Hauling

January 2021 Complaints

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Odor Complaints 2 11 9 177 78 40 23 0
Noise/Truck Traffic 0 0 0 0 7 0 3 0
Hauling 1 0 1 5 0 1 0 0
Mosquitoes 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 0

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Annual Complaint Comparison
Year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Injuries 0 0 0 0 0
Days Lost 0 0 0 0 0



CY2021 Budget Spent Year to Date
Personnel $1,827,670 $137,545
Utilities $570,500 $48,516
Contract Services $344,198 $50,810
Insurance $418,000 $20,782
Overhead Fees $137,316 $11,443
Maintenance $474,306 $15,664
Sludge Removal $195,000 $17,024
Other $282,690 $10,918

0
100,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
500,000
600,000
700,000
800,000
900,000

1,000,000
1,100,000
1,200,000
1,300,000
1,400,000
1,500,000
1,600,000

January 2021 O&M Expense $ Reporting 

Personnel Utilities Contract Services Chemicals Insurance Overhead Fees MaintenanceSludge RemovalLiquid Oxygen Other
CY2021 Budget $1,827,670 $570,500 $344,198 $140,000 $418,000 $137,316 $474,306 $195,000 $315,000 $282,690
Spent Year to 

Date $137,545 $48,516 $50,810 $3,186 $20,782 $11,443 $15,664 $17,024 $23,088 $10,918
% of CY2020 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

% Spent 7.53% 8.50% 14.76% 2.28% 4.97% 8.33% 3.30% 8.73% 7.33% 3.86%



Personnel Utilities Contract
Services Chemicals Insurance Overhead

Fees Maintenance Sludge
Removal

Liquid
Oxygen Other

% of CY2020 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30% 8.30%
%  Spent 7.53% 8.50% 14.76% 2.28% 4.97% 8.33% 3.30% 8.73% 7.33% 3.86%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

January 2021 O&M Expense % Reporting





CY2020 Capital Projects

Description
Project 
Budget 
Amount

Spent to Date January Updates

FIP Construction 
Engineering

$1,085,606 $1,020,254 Through February 24, 2021

FIP Construction $17,632,596 $15,398,553 Through February 24, 2021
Small Capital 

Projects
$115,000 $260 Through February 24, 2021

Plant Equipment 
Rehabilitation

$100,000 $0 Through February 24, 2021

Infrastructure $50,600 $17,440 Through February 24, 2021
Rolling Stock $48,000 $0 Through February 24, 2021

Electrical Grid 
Engineering

$310,900 $253,079 Through February 24, 2021

Electrical Grid 
Construction

$4,758,000 $375,917 Through February 24, 2021

Biosolids 
Dewatering 

Improvements 
(BDIP) Engineering

$374,100 $271,466 Through February 24, 2021

BDIP Construction $2,085,000 $0 Through February 24, 2021


Discharge Violations



		Year		2014		2015		2016		2017		2018		2019		2020		2021

		Glenbard		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		Stormwater		1		0		1		3		1		0		0		0



						Excursion Free Operating Days: 

				2014		2015		2016		2017		2018		2019		2020		2021

		January		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		February		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		March		0		0		0		0		0		0		0																																		2/4/13		2/28/21		2946

		April		0		0		0		*1		*1		0		0																																		4/15/18		2/28/21		1050

		May		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		June		*1		0		0		0		0		0		0

		July		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		August		0		0		*1		0		0		0		0

		September		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		October		0		0		0		*2		0		0		0

		November		0		0		0		0		0		0		0						Glenbard Plant: *Current Record												Stormwater Facility:

		December		0		0		0		0		0		0		0						2946 Days February 4, 2013 through January 31, 2021												1050 Days April 15, 2018 through January 31, 2021

		Total		*1		0		*1		*3		*1		0		0		0				Previous excursion free operating record:												Current excursion free operating record:

		*Stormwater Facility																				1058 Days September 8, 2007 – April 10, 2010												1140 Days July 11, 2009 through August 27, 2012 























NPDES Permit Violations

Glenbard	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	0	0	0	0	Stormwater	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	1	3	1	0	0	0	Number of Violations



 Flow Comp.

				Jan-06		Feb-06		Mar-06		Apr-06		May-06		Jun-06		Jul-06		Aug-06		Sep-06		Oct-06		Nov-06		Dec-06		Jan-07		Feb-07		Mar-07		Apr-07		May-07		Jun-07		Jul-07		Aug-07		Sep-07		Oct-07		Nov-07		Dec-07		Jan-08		Feb-08		Mar-08		Apr-08		May-08		Jun-08		Jul-08		Aug-08		Sep-08		Oct-08		Nov-08		Dec-08		Jan-09		Feb-09		Mar-09		Apr-09		May-09		Jun-09		Jul-09		Aug-09		Sep-09		Oct-09		Nov-09		Dec-09		Jan-10		10-Feb		Jan-15		Feb-15		Mar-15		15-Apr		15-May		15-Jun		15-Jul		Aug-15		15-Sep		15-Oct		Nov-15		Dec-15		Jan-16		Feb-16		Mar-16		Apr-16		May-16		Jan-17		Feb-17		Mar-17		Apr-17		May-17		Jun-17		Jul-17		Aug-17		Sep-17		Oct-17		Nov-17		Dec-17		Jan-18		Feb-18		Mar-18		Apr-18		May-18		Jun-18		Jul-18		Aug-18		Sep-18		Oct-18		Nov-18		Dec-18		Jan-19		Feb-19		Mar-19		Apr-19		May-19		Jun-19		Jul-19		Aug-19		Sep-19		Oct-19		Nov-19		Dec-19		Jan-20		Feb-20		Mar-20		Apr-20		May-20		Jun-20		Jul-20		Aug-20		Sep-20		20-Oct		20-Nov		20-Dec		21-Jan

		Glen Ellyn %		49.6021		49.1458		49.3323		48.6137		49.1368		49.8903		48.9376		49.1766		49.4757		48.2117		48.7817		47.4206		48.5445		48.5012		48.5459		45.7426		50.8272		54.4402		52.3056		48.0729		53.2136		50.1325		48.6332		45.8427		51.5171		47.7303		48.2859		48.9406		46.4212		49.2078		47.2736		47.8612		50.8196		49.073		48.7		47.2153		50.5986		46.8827		50.121		47.171		47.399		44.479		47.659		45.9292		47.811		47.8839		48.5764		48.423		48.679		49.043		41.54		43.25		41.30		43.49		42.19		44.45		46.36		43.66		42.96		43.49		41.79		43.97		44.93		45.91		42.89		45.17		42.56		42.09		43.49		37.31		37.86		40.97		37.23		35.71		36.771		37.26		32.52		34.89		34.0359		32.1375		34.8096		37.099		37.9253		38.7104		39.0417		42.1798		37.1218		38.0773		37.2679		41.8807		42.139		43.5669		38.1926		39.7689		37.9926		38.464		44.1141		45.2611		42.7669340932		39.6144		43.22		43.0128193667		40.0011		39.6412		43.931		42.3567		47.418		47.7942		42.7287		46.0736		48.4668		43.5073		43.3642		45.0223		44.7414		44.6336

		Lombard %		50.3979		50.8542		50.6677		51.3863		50.8632		50.1097		51.0624		50.8234		50.5243		51.7883		51.2183		52.5794		51.4555		51.4988		51.4541		54.2574		49.1728		45.5598		47.6944		51.9271		46.7864		49.8675		51.3668		54.1573		48.4829		52.2697		51.7141		51.0594		53.5788		50.7922		52.7264		52.1388		49.1804		50.927		51.3		52.7847		49.4014		53.1173		49.879		52.828		52.601		55.521		52.34		54.0708		52.189		52.1161		51.4236		51.577		51.322		50.957		58.46		56.76		58.70		56.51		57.81		55.55		53.64		56.34		57.04		56.51		58.21		56.03		55.07		54.09		57.11		54.83		57.44		57.91		56.51		62.69		62.14		59.03		62.77		64.29		63.229		62.74		67.48		65.11		65.9641		67.8625		65.1904		62.901		62.0747		61.2896		60.9583		57.8202		62.8782		61.9227		62.7321		58.1193		57.861		56.4331		61.8074		60.2311		62.0074		61.535		55.8859		54.7389		57.2330659068		60.3856		56.7761		56.9871806333		59.9989		60.3588		56.069		57.6433		52.582		52.2058		57.2713		53.9264		51.5332		56.4927		56.6358		54.9777		55.2586		55.3664

		Rain Amt		2.32		1.555		2.19		2.47		4.26		5.29		1.585		2.355		4.865		4.67		2.66		1.81		0.31		1.2		2.95		3.99		1.31		2.15		3.29		8.54		0.83		1.655		1.44		2.765		2.46		3.87		2.06		2.97		5.16		5.71		3.93		1.83		11.69		2.43		1.13		4.71		0.26		4.01		5.83		5.77		4.15		4.10		2.82		5.05		1.54		6.60		1.60		2.68		0.835		0.77		1.68		1.09		2.22		4.58		5.26		8.61		3.12		5.09		4.09		2.70		4.88		5.77		0.75		1.27		4.28		3.14		7.08		2.93		1.24		4.31		4.91		5.21		4.61		4.92		1.385		0.72		11.21		2.61		0.345		1.82		4.07		1.915		2.35		5.6		6.265		2.135		5.415		3.16		4.09		3.04		2.915		0.66		3.385		2.48		6.33		9.545		3.355		5.74		3.905		7.345		6.59		2.01		1.45		2.24		0.76		3.615		2.91		8.265		4.44		2.84		0.4		3.46		4.15		1.88

Gayle Lendabarker: Gayle Lendabarker:
CSO Nov Rain gage failure-data not recoverable		2.02

Gayle Lendabarker: Gayle Lendabarker:
CSO Rain Gage not operational. Being Replaced		1.14











 Flow Billing Comparison

Rain Amt	43466	43497	43525	43556	43586	43617	43647	43678	43709	43739	43770	43800	43831	43862	43891	43922	43952	43983	44013	44044	44075	44124	44155	44550	44217	0.65999999999999992	3.3849999999999998	2.48	6.33	9.5449999999999999	3.355	5.74	3.9049999999999998	7.3450000000000006	6.59	2.0099999999999998	1.45	2.2399999999999998	0.76	3.6150000000000002	2.91	8.2650000000000006	4.4399999999999995	2.84	0.4	3.46	4.1499999999999995	1.88	2.02	1.1399999999999999	Glen Ellyn %	43466	43497	43525	43556	43586	43617	43647	43678	43709	43739	43770	43800	43831	43862	43891	43922	43952	43983	44013	44044	44075	44124	44155	44550	44217	43.566899999999997	38.192599999999999	39.768900000000002	37.992600000000003	38.463999999999999	44.114100000000001	45.261099999999999	42.766934093245801	39.614400000000003	43.22	43.012819366719704	40.001100000000001	39.641199999999998	43.930999999999997	42.356699999999996	47.417999999999999	47.794199999999996	42.728700000000003	46.073599999999999	48.466799999999999	43.507300000000001	43.364199999999997	45.022300000000001	44.741399999999999	44.633600000000001	Lombard %	43466	43497	43525	43556	43586	43617	43647	43678	43709	43739	43770	43800	43831	43862	43891	43922	43952	43983	44013	44044	44075	44124	44155	44550	44217	56.433100000000003	61.807400000000001	60.231099999999998	62.007399999999997	61.534999999999997	55.885899999999999	54.738900000000001	57.233065906754199	60.385599999999997	56.7761	56.987180633280289	59.998899999999999	60.358800000000002	56.069000000000003	57.643300000000004	52.582000000000001	52.205800000000004	57.271299999999997	53.926400000000001	51.533200000000001	56.492699999999999	56.635800000000003	54.977699999999999	55.258600000000001	55.366399999999999	

Gallons Treated Per Year

																																				DATA in Data Tech -> Copy of CY18 Flow Bill



						Budget Years		Billion Gallons Treated Per Year as of January 31, 2021														Budget Years		Total Rainfall in Inches as of January 31, 2021

						CY2017		0.33														CY2017		2.84

						CY2018		0.27														CY2018		1.87

						CY2019		0.33														CY2019		0.66

						CY2020		0.39														CY2020		2.24

						CY2021		0.26														CY2021		1.14



Billion Gallons Treated Per Year as of 		January 31, 2021                                      

Billion Gallons Treated Per Year as of January 31, 2021	CY2017	CY2018	CY2019	CY2020	CY2021	0.33160000000000001	0.27	0.32779999999999998	0.38800000000000001	0.26200000000000001	           Total Rainfall in Inches as of 

January 31, 2021

Total Rainfall in Inches as of January 31, 2021	CY2017	CY2018	CY2019	CY2020	CY2021	2.84	1.87	0.66	2.2400000000000002	1.1399999999999999	

KPI's

































																						Odor Complaints		Mosquitoes		Noise/Truck Traffic		Hauling 						Years		2014		2015		2016		2017		2018		2019		2020		2021

				Year		2017		2018		2019		2020		2021								0		0		0		0						Odor Complaints		2		11		9		177		78		40		23		0

				Injuries		0		0		0		0		0																				Noise/Truck Traffic 		0		0		0		0		7		0		3		0

				Days Lost		0		0		0		0		0																				Hauling 		1		0		1		5		0		1		0		0

																																		Mosquitoes 		0		6		0		0		1		0		0		0

																						The Authority Key Performance Indicators regarding Safety and Neighborhood Impacts 



Injuries + Lost Time

Days Lost	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	0	0	0	0	Injuries	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	0	0	0	0	Injuries Days Lost	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	0	0	0	0	Annual Complaint Comparison

Odor Complaints	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2	11	9	177	78	40	23	0	Noise/Truck Traffic 	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	0	0	0	7	0	3	0	Hauling 	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	1	0	1	5	0	1	0	0	Mosquitoes 	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	0	6	0	0	1	0	0	0	January 2021 Complaints

Odor Complaints	Mosquitoes	Noise/Truck Traffic	Hauling 	0	0	0	0	

O&M Expense Tracking

						SY2014 		CY2021		Spent 		% of		$ 				% 

						Actual		Budget		Year to Date		CY2020		Over/Under 				Spent

												8.30%		2015 Budget

				Personnel		$1,012,932		$1,827,670		$137,545		8.30%		$10,483				7.53%

				Utilities		$592,735		$570,500		$48,516		8.30%		($194,450)				8.50%

				Contract Services		$288,197		$344,198		$50,810		8.30%		$86,900				14.76%

				Chemicals		$61,062		$140,000		$3,186		8.30%		($9,000)				2.28%

				Insurance		$276,698		$418,000		$20,782		8.30%		$54,400				4.97%

				Overhead Fees		$84,000		$137,316		$11,443		8.30%		$0				8.33%

				Maintenance		$113,944		$474,306		$15,664		8.30%		$30,450				3.30%

				Sludge Removal		$102,416		$195,000		$17,024		8.30%		$15,000				8.73%

				Liquid Oxygen				$315,000		$23,088		8.30%						7.33%

				Other		$169,986		$282,690		$10,918		8.30%		$112,800				3.86%

				Total				$4,704,680		$338,976		8.30%						7.21%

















								Personnel		Utilities		Contract Services		Chemicals		Chemicals		Insurance		Overhead Fees		Maintenance		Sludge Removal		Liquid Oxygen		Other

				CY2021 Budget				$1,827,670		$570,500		$344,198		$10,483		$140,000		$418,000		$137,316		$474,306		$195,000		$315,000		$282,690

				Spent Year to Date				$137,545		$48,516		$50,810				$3,186		$20,782		$11,443		$15,664		$17,024		$23,088		$10,918

				% of CY2020				8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%		8%

				% Spent				7.53%		8.50%		14.76%		0.00%		2.28%		4.97%		8.33%		3.30%		8.73%		7.33%		3.86%



January 2021 O&M Expense $ Reporting 

Personnel	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	1827670	137545	Utilities	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	570500	48516	Contract Services	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	344198	50810	Chemicals	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	Insurance	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	418000	20782	Overhead Fees	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	137316	11443	Maintenance	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	474306	15664	Sludge Removal	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	195000	17024	Other	CY2021 Budget	Spent Year to Date	282690	10918	January 2021 O&M Expense % Reporting

% of	CY2020	Personnel	Utilities	Contract Services	Chemicals	Insurance	Overhead Fees	Maintenance	Sludge Removal	Liquid Oxygen	Other	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	8.3000000000000004E-2	Personnel	Utilities	Contract Services	Chemicals	Insurance	Overhead Fees	Maintenance	Sludge Removal	Liquid Oxygen	Other	% 	Spent	Personnel	Utilities	Contract Services	Chemicals	Insurance	Overhead Fees	Maintenance	Sludge Removal	Liquid Oxygen	Other	7.5257021234686791E-2	8.5041191936897464E-2	0.14761852189728006	2.2757142857142858E-2	4.97177033492823E-2	8.3333333333333329E-2	3.302509350503683E-2	8.7302564102564109E-2	7.3295238095238094E-2	3.8621811878736423E-2	

CY2021 Capital Projects

				Description		Project Budget Amount		Spent to Date		January Updates

				FIP Construction Engineering		$1,085,606		$1,020,254		Through February 24, 2021

				FIP Construction 		$17,632,596		$15,398,553		Through February 24, 2021

				Small Capital Projects		$115,000		$260		Through February 24, 2021

				Plant Equipment Rehabilitation		$100,000		$0		Through February 24, 2021

				Infrastructure		$50,600		$17,440		Through February 24, 2021		$6,121.68

				Rolling Stock		$48,000		$0		Through February 24, 2021

				Electrical Grid Engineering		$310,900		$253,079		Through February 24, 2021

				Electrical Grid Construction		$4,758,000		$375,917		Through February 24, 2021

				Biosolids Dewatering Improvements (BDIP) Engineering		$374,100		$271,466		Through February 24, 2021

				BDIP Construction		$2,085,000		$0		Through February 24, 2021		Facility Improvements Project Construction Engineering

												No Update

																Combined Heat & Power (CHP)		Plant Equipment Rehabilitation		Infrastructure		Rolling Stock 		Infrastructure		UV System Upgrade		BIO P Engineering

																Completed		No work complete in February				No billings for February		Air Make Up Unit Purchased for Scum Building		Completed		Continuous sampling and reporting are being done in order for B&W to continue evlauating Phase II of the WP1.





























































January 2021 Project Updates 

Project Budget Amount	FIP Construction Engineering	FIP Construction 	Small Capital Projects	Plant Equipment Rehabilitation	Infrastructure	Rolling Stock	Electrical Grid Engineering	Electrical Grid Construction	Biosolids Dewatering Improvements (BDIP) Engineering	BDIP Construction	1085606	17632595.829999998	115000	100000	50600	48000	310900	4758000	374100	2085000	Spent to Date	FIP Construction Engineering	FIP Construction 	Small Capital Projects	Plant Equipment Rehabilitation	Infrastructure	Rolling Stock	Electrical Grid Engineering	Electrical Grid Construction	Biosolids Dewatering Improvements (BDIP) Engineering	BDIP Construction	1020254.2	15398553.24	260	0	17440	0	253079	375916.5	271465.59999999998	0	

ERC Monthly Report



				ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE COORDINATOR ACTIONS 

				Apr-18

						FOG				INDUSTRIAL

						VOL		VGE		VOL

				Inspections Complete		0		0		0

				Plan Reviews		1		0

				Enforcement Letters		0		0		0

				Other Follow Up Actions		9		2		3

				Industrial Reports Reviewed		-		-		2

				Manifests Reviewed/Logged		21		6		0

				Permits Issued		-		-		0

				Violations Identified		3		-		0

				   Permit/Discharge		-		-		-

				   Maintenance		2		0		-

				   Repair/Replace		1		0		-





































































FOG	VOL	Inspections Complete	Plan Reviews	Enforcement Letters	Other Follow Up Actions	Industrial Reports Reviewed	Manifests Reviewed/Logged	Permits Issued	Violations Identified	   Permit/Discharge	   Maintenance	   Repair/Replace	0	1	0	9	0	21	0	3	0	2	1	FOG	VGE	Inspections Complete	Plan Reviews	Enforcement Letters	Other Follow Up Actions	Industrial Reports Reviewed	Manifests Reviewed/Logged	Permits Issued	Violations Identified	   Permit/Discharge	   Maintenance	   Repair/Replace	0	0	0	2	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	INDUSTRIAL	VOL	Inspections Complete	Plan Reviews	Enforcement Letters	Other Follow Up Actions	Industrial Reports Reviewed	Manifests Reviewed/Logged	Permits Issued	Violations Identified	   Permit/Discharge	   Maintenance	   Repair/Replace	0	0	3	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Biosolids



						2017		Dewatered Sludge (Gallons)		Decanted Water (Gallons)		 Cake Produced (Cuyds)				2018		Dewatered Sludge (Gallons)		Decanted Water (Gallons)		 Cake Produced (Cuyds)				2019		Dewatered Sludge (Gallons)		Decanted Water (Gallons)		 Cake Produced (Cuyds)				2020		Dewatered Sludge (Gallons)		Decanted Water (Gallons)		 Cake Produced (Cuyds)				2020		Dewatered Sludge (Gallons)		Decanted Water (Gallons)		 Cake Produced (Cuyds)

						January		2,005,500		127,631		938				January		865,420		277,900		446				January		932,821		107,059		416				January		1,937,769		133,649		980				January		680,520		0		280

						February		1,485,100		143,170		784				February		575,420		318,619		350				February		698,520		126,589		432				February		1,691,729		255,027		812				February

						March		1,952,300		0		1,008				March		1,700,259		904,781		922				March		735,072		188,228		452				March		2,433,826		55,331		924				March

						April		2,035,900		40,220		931				April		924,761		110,729		438				April		326,347		448,541		252				April		1,927,375		57,600		812				April

						May		2,229,300		11,421		812				May		693,421		458,369		430				May		834,555		390,893		492				May		1,814,142		77,879		728				May

						June		2,220,200		0		1,078				June		731,231		499,169		458				June		473,712		26,140		210				June		2,203,381		16,181		896				June

						July		2,371,733		0		1,071				July		915,081		10,357		506				July		1,260,091		294,340		630				July		2,110,659		4,800		884				July

						August		2,351,711		0		1,017				August		1,097,548.00		241,441		592				August		2,694,429.00		38,400		860				August		2,412,845.00		27,440		868				August

						September		3,238,521		0		1,081				September		1,974,530		56,209		520				September		1,320,540		145,221		718				September		1,909,497		461,721		702				September

						October		1,152,031		863,229		413				October		665,722		24,458		526				October		1,115,953		751,788		702				October		1,830,482		144,750		728				October

						November		878,632		494,770		479				November		1,261,839		158,818		676				November		1,876,290		147,731		952				November		2,247,641		9,710		840				November

						December		1,171,387		348,149		591				December		757,669		282,567		308				December		1,923,900		50,610		896				December		2,432,200		0		896				December

								23,092,315		2,028,590		10,203						12,162,901		3,343,417		6,172						14,192,230		2,715,540		7,012						24,951,546		1,244,088		10,070						680,520		0		280





Microsoft_Word_Document.docx

Comments:


· Reviewed all permit applications and certificate of occupancy applications in VOL and all of the business registration applications for VGE to keep data base up to date and for possible future inspections and/or inclusion in the pretreatment program. 





· Attended the Illinois Wastewater Professionals Conference.





· Attended ISPS training. 





· Completed annual industrial pretreatment report and submitted to IEPA/EPA.





· Researched current process of filing manifests separate from sample analysis. 





· Complied information regarding FOG program progress in VOL for the Building Official. 





· Contacted possible HSW suppliers to get deliveries restarted. 







image1.emf

Comments: 


 Reviewed all permit applications and certificate of occupancy applications in VOL and all of 


the business registration applications for VGE to keep data base up to date and for possible 


future inspections and/or inclusion in the pretreatment program.   


 


 Attended the Illinois Wastewater Professionals Conference.  


 


 Attended ISPS training.  


 


 Completed annual industrial pretreatment report and submitted to IEPA/EPA.  


 


 Researched current process of filing manifests separate from sample analysis.   


 


 Complied information regarding FOG program progress in VOL for the Building Official.   


 


 Contacted possible HSW suppliers to get deliveries restarted.   


 






December CHP Report

Combined Heat & Power Production Report

0.00

20,000.00

40,000.00

60,000.00

80,000.00

100,000.00

120,000.00

0.00
50.00

100.00
150.00
200.00
250.00
300.00
350.00
400.00

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Ki
lo

w
at

t h
ou

rs

En
gi

ne
 H

ou
rs

Monthly CHP Production

Road to Net Zero

Engine #1 Hrs Engine #2 Hrs Engine #1 kWh Engine #2 kWh

Engine #1 Hrs Engine #1 Avail Hrs Engine #2 Hrs Engine #2 Avail Hrs Engine #1 kWh Engine #1 Avail kWh Engine #2 kWh Engine #2 Avail kWh $ Saved
January 329.60 744 375.20 744 91,317.00 279,000 104,255.00 279,000 $14,754.81

Monthly CHP Production 2021 = $0.08/kWh



Return on Investment Monetary Breakdown

RECS

HSW/FOG 
Gallons 
Received

HSW 
Tipping Fees

Elec Energy 
Produced @ 
$0.07/kWh

Maintenance 
Costs Total + or -

Target to 
meet 8.8 
Year 
Repayment 
Schedule

Hit + or Miss -

Calendar Year 2020
January 200,970 $10,048.50 $18,042.01 $1,890.00 $26,200.51 $31,256.00 (5,055.49)

February 141,465 $7,073.25 $20,094.73 $1,512.89 $25,655.09 $31,256.00 (5,600.91)
March 173,840 $8,692.00 $19,599.80 $580.00 $27,711.80 $31,256.00 (3,544.19)

April 153,275 $7,663.75 $20,494.55 $2,436.00 $25,722.30 $31,256.00 (5,533.69)
May 136,460 $6,823.00 $17,846.52 $2,254.85 $22,414.67 $31,256.00 (8,841.33)
June 153,920 $7,696.00 $19,134.51 $1,395.44 $25,435.07 $31,256.00 (5,820.92)
July 161,425 $8,071.25 $9,251.31 $1,161.36 $16,161.20 $31,256.00 (15,094.80)

August 219,075 $10,953.75 $20,545.50 $1,846.00 $29,653.25 $31,256.00 (1,602.74)
September 187,790 $9,389.50 $16,063.45 $4,621.48 $20,831.47 $31,256.00 (10,424.53)

October 221,345 $11,067.25 $31,816.95 $1,846.00 $41,038.20 $31,256.00 9,782.20
November 165,540 $8,277.00 $14,524.77 $2,463.88 $20,337.89 $31,256.00 (10,918.10)
December $24,198.77 261,102 $13,055.10 $21,787.92 $993.00 $58,048.79 $31,256.00 26,792.79

Annual Totals 2,176,207 $108,810.35 $229,202.03 $23,000.90 $339,210.25
Repayment Balance $3,300,633.09

Annual Payback on Investment $240,438.87
Current Return on Investment in Years 13.7

RECS

HSW/FOG 
Gallons 
Received

HSW 
Tipping Fees

Elec Energy 
Produced @ 
$0.07/kWh

Maintenance 
Costs Total + or -

Target to 
meet 8.8 
Year 
Repayment 
Schedule

Hit + or Miss -

Calendar Year 2021
January 235,008 $11,750.40 $14,754.81 $1,247.28 $25,257.93 $31,016.81 (5,758.88)

February $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
March $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)

April $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
May $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
June $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
July $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)

August $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
September $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)

October $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
November $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)
December $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,016.81 (31,016.81)

Annual Totals $0.00 235,008 $11,750.40 $14,754.81 $1,247.28 $25,257.93
Repayment Balance $3,275,375.17

Annual Payback on Investment $240,438.87
Current Return on Investment in Years 13.6







EXPENDITURES: Check Date Paid Amount

Accounts Payable Warrant  0121-1 1/15/2021 697,682.82$              

Accounts Payable Warrant  0121-2 1/29/2021 151,734.78$              

849,417.60$              Warrant Total 849,417.60$                  

PAYROLL EXPENDITURES: January 15, 2021 January 29, 2021

Net Employee Payroll Checks 41,661.82$             36,620.15$                

Employee & Employer Payroll Deductions:

Employee Deductions* 21,597.59$             19,297.61$                

IMRF - Employer contribution 5,247.35$               4,635.69$                  

Social Security/Medicare Tax Withheld - Employer portion 4,621.83$               4,062.93$                  

Total Payroll 73,128.59$             64,616.38$                137,744.97$                  

GRAND TOTAL 987,162.57$                  

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS

For the meeting in February 2021





















EXPENDITURES: Check Date Paid Amount
Accounts Payable Warrant  0221-1 2/16/2021 61,051.25$                
Accounts Payable Warrant  0221-2 2/26/2021 29,792.90$                

90,844.15$                Warrant Total 90,844.15$                    

PAYROLL EXPENDITURES: February 12, 2021 February 26, 2021

Net Employee Payroll Checks 41,420.83$             40,528.59$                

Employee & Employer Payroll Deductions:
Employee Deductions* 21,541.60$             21,753.58$                
IMRF - Employer contribution 4,875.87$               5,094.31$                  
Social Security/Medicare Tax Withheld - Employer portion 4,573.98$               4,595.71$                  

Total Payroll 72,412.28$             71,972.19$                144,384.47$                  

GRAND TOTAL 235,228.62$                  

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS
For the meeting in March 2021

















MEMORANDUM 

TO: Executive Oversight Committee 

FROM: Jon Braga, Maintenance Superintendent 
Through – Matt Streicher, Executive Director 

DATE: March  11, 2021 

RE: Forklift Purchase Request Per the CY2021 Budgeted 
Vehicle Replacement Schedule 

The Authority has budgeted $48,000 for the replacement of unit 612, a 1998 Daewoo Forklift.  
Existing unit 612 is past it’s useful service life and is need of replacement.  The Village of Glen 
Ellyn’s Fleet Superintendent is agreement with this assessment.  

Attached to this memo is the Sourcewell quote for the purchase of one 2021 Doosan industrial 
forklift. The Authority Staff requests the EOC to approve waiving competitive bidding per the 
Village of Glen Ellyn purchasing policy Section C. COMPETATIVE SEALED BIDDING subsection 
1d. “Cooperative Purchases” defined as more than one unit of government purchasing goods and services together by 
competitive bid. 

Sourcewell (Formerly National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA)), is cooperative contract purchasing 
program leveraging the national purchasing power of more than 50,000-member agencies while also 
streamlining the required purchasing process. As a municipal national contracting agency, Sourcewell 
establishes and provides nationally leveraged and competitively solicited purchasing contracts under 
the guidance of the Uniform Municipal Contracting Law. Joint Powers laws enable members to 
legally purchase through awarded contracts.  

Doosan is providing industrial forklifts through Sourcewell contract # 091520-DIV. Illinois Material 
Handling (Woltergroup, LLC) is the local representing dealership for Doosan.   

GWA team members currently utilize a Doosan forklift at the main plant and find it to be 
satisfactory with the needs of everyday tasks. Replacement with an in-kind lift truck will provide a 
seamless transition.    

The Authority staff is requesting your authorization to provide Illinois Material Handling 
(Woltergroup, LLC) with a notice to proceed in the amount of $32,646.00 billed to 40-570155 
Vehicles and Equipment Replacement.   

The Authority Staff would also like to request the current 1998 Daewoo forklift #612 be approved 
for future sale by means of public auction as directed by the Village of Glen Ellyn. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL FOR: 
Glenbard Wastewater Authority 
Jon Braga  
 
 
 
Prepared By: 
Steve Vlach   

 
 
 
  
  

WOLTER GROUP LLC 
HEADQUARTERS: 3125 INTERTECH DRIVE | BROOKFIELD WI | 53045 
WISCONSIN LIFT TRUCK | ILLINOIS MATERIAL HANDLING | KENSAR | BOHNERT 
WOLTER POWER SYSTEMS | FLEET SERVICES | ELLIS SYSTEMS | AD LIFT TRUCK 
 



 
 

 
WOLTER GROUP LLC 

HEADQUARTERS: 3125 INTERTECH DRIVE | BROOKFIELD WI | 53045 
WISCONSIN LIFT TRUCK | ILLINOIS MATERIAL HANDLING | KENSAR | BOHNERT | AD LIFT TRUCK | ELLIS SYSTEMS | WOLTER POWER SYSTEMS 

CUSTOMER:  Glenbard Wastewater Authority SHIP TO:  Glenbard Wastewater Authority 
   945 Bemis Rd. 945 Bemis Rd. 
   Glen Ellyn, IL  60137 Glen Ellyn, IL  60137 
 
 
 Phone :   (630) 790-1901     FOB :  Delivered 
       
 

Quote Date Quote No County Prepared By 
2/10/2021 SV 600272 17043 - DuPage Steve Vlach 

  
 
We would like to thank you for the opportunity to quote on your Material Handling Equipment requirements.  
We propose to furnish the equipment, parts or service described herein, in accordance with the specifications, 
terms and conditions outlined.  We are pleased to offer the following: 
 
DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 
 

 Make/Model : Doosan G33N-7 
 Chassis : G33N-7 DF  Nissan 2.5L Engine 6500# Capacity, I. C. Pneumatic Tire Forklift  
 UL Rating : UL Rated Type LP 
 Brakes : Oil-Cooled Disc Brakes 
 Tires : Single Pneumatic 8.15-15 12PR Drive / 6.50-10 10PR Steer 
 Mast : 3-Stage Full Free Triple Wide View  MFH  219"  OAL  99"  FFH  71" 
 Tilt Cylinders : 6° Forward / 3° Back 
 Sideshifter : Integral Sideshifting Fork Positioner 46" Wide 
 Carriage : Included with Integral Attachment 
 Forks : Hook Type - Pallet - 1.8" x 5" x 47" 
 Load Backrest : Included with Fork Positioner 
 Factory Cab : Full Cabin 
 Cab Comfort : Cab Heater 
 Overhead Guard : Included with Cab 
 Hydraulic Lines : 4-Way For Sideshifting Fork Positioner 
 Hydraulic Control Valve : 4 Section with 4 Levers 
 Mirrors : Large Rear View Mirrors 
 Seat : Vinyl Suspension Seat 
 Seat Belt : Orange 
 Direction Control : Standard - Lever Direction Control 
 Grab Bar : Rear Grab Bar with Horn Button 
 LP Tank Cradle : Standard Mounting 
 Warning Lights : Strobe - Amber - Mounted Above OHG 
 Warning Device : Back-Up Alarm 
 Front Work Lights : Combination Lights with Front Flood Lights - LED 
 Rear Work Lights : (2) Rear Floodlights - LED 
 Warranty : Doosan Assurance - Standard 2 Year / 3,000 Hour, Powertrain 3 Year / 6,000 

Hour, OCDB 5 Year / 10,000 Hour 
 
 



 
 

 
WOLTER GROUP LLC 

HEADQUARTERS: 3125 INTERTECH DRIVE | BROOKFIELD WI | 53045 
WISCONSIN LIFT TRUCK | ILLINOIS MATERIAL HANDLING | KENSAR | BOHNERT | AD LIFT TRUCK | ELLIS SYSTEMS | WOLTER POWER SYSTEMS 

Standard Equipment 
  

Nissan 2.5L Engine 
Power Shift Transmission 
Oil Cooled Disc Brakes 
Power Steering 
Tiltable Steering Column 
Engine Shutdown 
Dual Element Air Cleaner 
LP Tank Mounting 
Tilt Cylinder Covers 
Counterweight 

 
Other Doosan Equipment 
 

Cab Operator Fan 
Mirror - Panoramic 
Steering Wheel Knob 
Wiper for Front Windshield 
 

 
 
 

••  TOTAL EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES  •• 
 
Qty Make Description Total Net Price 
 
(1)  Doosan   $ 32,646.00 
  G33N-7 DF  Nissan 2.5L Engine 6500# Capacity, I. C. Pneumatic Tire Forklift  
 
 

**Unless otherwise stated, any quote or proposal provided by Seller is valid for 30 days only** 
 

**Pricing is subject to any future government action or regulation** 
 
 

 
 
--Additional Customer Request-- 
 
_________      Price:         
          
_________               Price:          
 
 
                 Grand Total Price:        
 
 
 



 
 

 
WOLTER GROUP LLC 

HEADQUARTERS: 3125 INTERTECH DRIVE | BROOKFIELD WI | 53045 
WISCONSIN LIFT TRUCK | ILLINOIS MATERIAL HANDLING | KENSAR | BOHNERT | AD LIFT TRUCK | ELLIS SYSTEMS | WOLTER POWER SYSTEMS 

Buyer hereby grants to Seller a security interest in all equipment and materials listed herein to secure payment in 
full of the purchase price of all such equipment and materials, and performance of all other obligations by Buyer 
under this agreement;  Buyer authorizes the Seller to file a UCC financing statement with respect to this security 
interest. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, pricing shown does not include tax. 
 
This Proposal is subject to Wolter Group LLC’s Standard Terms and Conditions, which are incorporated herein by 
reference.  Buyer expressly agrees to such Standard Terms and Conditions and any inconsistent or additional 
terms submitted by Buyer are rejected.  See: http://www.wisconsinlift.com/terms-conditions/ 
 
 
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY:  Glenbard Wastewater Authority___________ 
 
PRINTED NAME: ____________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: ____________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: ____________________________________________________ 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: X____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
ACCEPTED BY SELLER:     
 
QUOTATION SUBMITTED BY:  Steve Vlach_________________________ 
 (Salesperson)   
 

SIGNATURE: X____________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: ____________________________________________________   
 
 
(This Quotation shall become a contract only upon signature by the Sales Manager of Seller at its business offices.)    
   
 

If you have any questions, please contact us: 
 
Sales Rep:    Steve Vlach 
Cell Phone:    331-212-1844 
Email Address:   steve.vlach@imhlifts.com 
Branch Phone:  630-754-4440 
 
Company:   Illinois Material Handling 
Address:   490 W North Frontage Rd  
City/State/Zip: Bolingbrook, IL 60440 
 
Customer Name: Glenbard Wastewater Authority 
Quote Number: SV 600272 
Quote Date:   2/10/2021 

 

http://www.wisconsinlift.com/terms-conditions/




 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
  
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent 
 through, Matt Streicher, Executive Director 
  
DATE:  March 11, 2021 
  
RE: Request for Authorization 

Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Contract Award 
 
 
During the month of February, GWA placed an advertisement for bid for a three-year contract 
for the removal and disposal of municipal bio-solids from the main Glenbard plant.  At the bid 
opening date on February 26, 2018 at 12:00pm, there were seven registered plan holders.  At the 
bid opening GWA received three bid packets.  The results are as follows: 
COMPANY $/CUBIC YARD ESTIMATED 3 YEAR TOTAL 
Synagro $19.20 $691,200 
Stewart Spreading $19.50 $702,000 
Dahm Enterprises $25.00 $900,000 
 
After review of all the required documents, Syango was the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder with a hauling rate of $19.20 per cubic yard for the entire three-year contract period. In 
CY2018-CY2020, GWA had been paying $19.00 per cubic yard.  Therefore, by entering into the 
new three-year contract, the Authority will realize a slight cost increase of $0.20/cubic yard 
(approximately $2,200/year).  Syangro is a recognized company that has a satisfactory 
reputation, and hauls for other local municipalities as well. They have also been the Authority’s 
existing hauler for the past three-year contract.  The total value of the contract dollar amount will 
be dependent on the quantity of cubic yards of bio-solids produced per year, and is typically 
budgeted at $180,000/year 
 
The TAC and the Authority recommend the EOC to motion to authorize the award of the three-
year contract for Disposal of Municipal Bio-Solids to Synagro for the amount of $19.20 per 
cubic yard.   
 

 





 

 

 MEMORANDUM  

 
TO: Matt Streicher, Executive Director 
 Tom Romza, Assistant Executive Director/ Engineer 

 
FROM: Jon Braga, Maintenance Superintendent 
  
DATE:  March 2, 2021 
  
RE: CHP Spare Parts Order 
 
 
In 2015, GWA purchased 2 CHP generators. These generators are designed to run 24/7 and with running at this 
frequency, consumable parts need replacement fairly often. Each year funds are budgeted for consumable items. 
These items include oil filters, air filters, oil separators, gas filters, sparkplugs and valve cover gaskets. Recent 
inventory of existing parts revealed lower than desired quantities of these essential consumables.  

 
Nissen Energy Inc has supplied consumable parts since inception of the CHP generators. A proposal was requested 
(see attached) by GWA to Nissen for the needed consumables. In regards to the size of the order, Nissen has agreed 
to provide a 10% discount and free shipping for all parts. Due to these items having economy of scale, pricing for 
the amount of parts to conclude CY 2021 is favorable to GWA.   
 
The approved 2016 purchasing policy item C.1.f. defines Standardization purchases, as “technical in nature of 
certain items or services may result in the standardization of a particular supplier’s specifications being necessary or 
desirable to Village operations. Competitive bidding may be waived if the Village requires compatibility with 
existing software, machinery or other existing equipment.” Therefore, it is being requested to provide Nissen Energy 
with a notice to proceed for the amount of $28,426.78. Nissen Energy is the manufacturer of the CHP generators and 
guarantees compatibility of the consumables with the existing equipment. Funds will be sourced from budget line 
item 270-520975.  
 
Please advise and thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 



NISSEN energy Inc.
875 N. Michigan Ave
suite 3950
60611 IL, Chicago
United States

Delivery address
NISSEN energy Inc.
875 N. Michigan Ave
suite 3950
60611 IL, Chicago
United States

Offer no. 1409
Customer no. 100119
Offer date 27-02-2021

Our refrence: Michael Brandt Nissen
Your refrence: Michael Nissen

Quotation

Product
no.

Description Qty. Unit Total Price Amount

Expering date: 27-02-2021
Delivery terms: DAP

USD Sum 28.426,78
(0,00 %) vat
USD total 28.426,78

NISSEN energy a/s · Godthaabsvej 1 · 8660 Skanderborg · Denmark · Ph. +45 75756500 · nissen@nissenenergy.com
CVR DK19394441 · Nordea · Bank account 25945036507790 IBAN DK3420005036507790 SWIFT NDEADKKK

Sales and delivery terms for NISSEN energy a/s: REGULAR SALES 01_2019.

Glenbard Wastewater Authority
945 Bemis Rd
Glen Ellyn
IL-60137

Spareparts for CHP 1+2
101504 Oilfilter 84 Pcs. 15,65 1.182,77
101489 Air filter 24 Pcs. 77,68 1.677,90
101339 Spark plug M18 128 Pcs. 116,72 13.446,07
101080 Seal ring 44 Pcs. 2,42 95,81
101028 Spark plug gasket M18x1,5 128 Pcs. 0,30 37,77
101269 Oil separator 44 Pcs. 198,35 7.854,66
101295 Gasket, cylinder head cover 160 Pcs. 17,84 2.568,31
101192 Filter insert 24 Pcs. 58,79 1.269,87
101197 O-ring 24 Pcs. 13,59 293,62

Freight 1 Pcs. 0,00





1 
 

kGLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
Executive Oversight Committee 

MINUTES 
November 19, 2020 

8:00 a.m.  
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84288624217 

 
Glenbard Wastewater Authority Meeting Procedures Statement  

On March 16, 2020, Governor Pritzker issued Executive Order. No. 5 in response to COVID-19, which 
temporary suspended certain requirements of the Open Meetings Act ILCS 120 allowing Executive 
Oversight Committee members to participate electronically in Executive Oversight Committee meetings. 
The Public is welcome to observe and participate in all meetings of the Executive Oversight Committee. 
Meetings are able to be viewed using the link https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86374226774 or by calling (312) 
626-6799 and using the Meeting ID: 863 7422 6774. All public comments received during the meeting 
will be read into the record during the appropriate portion of the agenda. 
 
Members Present: 
 Keith Giagnorio  President, Village of Lombard 

Diane McGinley  President, Village of Glen Ellyn 
 Kelli Christiansen  Trustee, Village of Glen Ellyn 

Scott Niehaus   Village Manager, Village of Lombard 
 Mark Franz   Village Manager, Village of Glen Ellyn 
 Carl Goldsmith  Public Works Director, Village of Lombard 
 Julius Hansen   Public Works Director, Village of Glen Ellyn 
  
Others Present: 

Matthew Streicher  Executive Director, GWA 
Jon Braga   Maintenance Superintendent, GWA 
Richard Freeman  Electrical Superintendent, GWA 
Ashley Staat   Environmental Resources Coordinator, GWA 
Gayle Lendabarker  Administrative Secretary, GWA 
Christina Coyle  Finance Director, Village of Glen Ellyn 
 

1. Call to Order at 8:05 a.m. 
 

2. Roll Call: President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, 
Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr. Hansen answered “Present”. Trustee Ware was excused. 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

4. Award Recognition –  
 
The President of the Central States Water Environmental Association (CSWEA), Mark 
Eddington, Executive Director of the Kishwaukee Water Reclamation District, will be presenting 
the CSWEA 2020 Operations Award to Jason Neighbors, Operator 1 at GWA, and the 2020 
Water Stewardship Award to Matt Streicher.  Since the usual awards ceremony was not allowed 
to take place this year, CSWEA would like to formally recognize the award winners at their 
respective public meetings. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84288624217
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84288624217
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86374226774


EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Streicher requested that this item be removed from the agenda. Recognition will be held at 
the January 2021 EOC Meeting. 
 

5. Public Comment 
 

6. Consent Agenda - The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive Oversight 
Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below: 

 
Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for part of the 
month of October 2020 $770,403.50. (Trustee Christiansen). 
 
Mr. Franz motioned and Mr. Goldsmith seconded the MOTION that the following items, on 
the Consent Agenda be approved. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee 
Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during 
a roll vote. The motion carried.  

 
6.1 Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes: 

o October 8, 2020 EOC Meeting 
 

6.2 Vouchers previously reviewed by Trustee Christiansen 
o October 2020 

 
7. Facility Improvement Project Deductive Change Order 

 
After negotiating with the General Contractor on how to resolve the issue of potential liquidated 
damages, the Authority recommends that the EOC motion the authorization to approve Change 
Order Number 6 to reduce the Facility Improvement Construction Contract by $68,663, lowering 
it from $17,701,258.83 to $17,632,595.83.  A more detailed explanation and breakdown can be 
found in the memo within the agenda packet. 
 
Mr. Streicher indicated that since the Executive Session meeting the previous month, an additional 
$5,000 change order had been presented by Boller, that would have lessened the amount of the 
deductive change order. Mr. Streicher stated that after discussion, Boller agreed to absorb the 
$5,000 cost, leaving the final amount of the deductive change order at $68,663. 
 
Mr. Streicher reminded the EOC Committee, that the decision to approve this change order, means 
GWA will not incur any costs associated with litigation that could have been drawn out for several 
years and may not have resulted in a positive outcome for GWA. Mr. Streicher also added that 
litigation does not provide a positive reflection on Boller Construction, nor GWA in the eyes of 
contractors for future projects. 
 
Mr. Niehaus made the motion and Mr. Franz seconded to approve Change Order Number 6 to 
reduce the Facility Improvement Construction Contract by $68,663, thereby lowering Boller 
Construction’s contract price from $17,701,258.83 to $17,632,595.83. President Giagnorio, 
President McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. 
Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried. 
 
 
 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

3 
 

8. Facility Improvement Project Construction Engineering Amendment Number 2 
 
Due to the project construction extending past the expected completion date, the budget amount for 
construction engineering services had become depleted, and an amendment is needed in order to 
finish out the items in the original scope; including substantial and final completion items, loan 
closeout, and record drawings of as-built conditions.  The deductive change order to the 
construction contract discussed in item 6 of this agenda is intended to cover the costs of this 
engineering amendment.  
 
The Authority recommends the EOC motion the authorization to approve amendment number 2 to 
the construction engineering contract with Black & Veatch, to increase the total contract amount 
by $58,663, bringing the total amount from $1,030,943 to $1,089,606. These funds would come 
out of the 40-580180 budget, and per contract language in the FIP construction contract, the funds 
are being recovered from the contractor via a deductive change order. 
 
Mr. Romza indicated that since Boller did not meet the completion date of November 19th, this 
amendment will fund Black & Veatch’s continued services for the FIP project until the project is 
completed. Mr. Romza indicated that these costs are part of the deductive change order approved 
in Agenda Item Number 7. 
 
Mr. Goldsmith made the motion and Mr. Niehaus seconded to approve Amendment Number 2 
of Black and Veatch’s construction engineering contract increasing the contract amount by 
$58,663 thereby increasing the contract amount from $1,030,943 to $1,089,606. President 
Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith 
and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried. 

 
9. Biosolids Dewatering Improvement Notice of Intent to Award Construction Contract 
 

The Authority advertised the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project in accordance with local, 
state, and federal guidelines on September 11th, 2020. The Authority received bids until 10:00 a.m. 
on Tuesday, October 27th, 2020. Four bids were received for the project and were immediately 
opened and read aloud publicly. The following is a tabulation of the bids received: 
 

Company Base Bid Amount Percent Above Low Bid 

Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost $      2,080,025.00  - 
Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc.  $      2,085,000.00  - 
Joseph J. Henderson & Son, Inc. $      2,098,000.00  0.60% 
Manusos General Contracting, Inc. $      2,214,000.00  6.20% 
IHC Construction Companies, LLC. $      2,290,000.00  9.80% 

 
Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. (IMI) of Elk Grove Village, Illinois was the apparent low 
bidder with a base bid amount of $2,085,000. 
 
The original budgeted amount for the project and items included in the scope was $1,895,000, not 
including engineering fees. However, coupled with lower than budgeted engineering fees for both 
the design and proposed construction engineering phase, total budget amount for the project comes 
in only $134,100 higher than what was budgeted for over the course of CY2020-CY2021.  The 
reason for the slightly higher than budgeted cost is due to some additional improvements included 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

4 
 

while in design.  The additional scope items consist of improvements to the storage and conveyance 
system for high strength waste, which would allow for better utilization of existing storage, better 
tracking of materials received, and several other improvements.  These improvements would allow 
the possibility of more revenue, less overhead, and less risk of any future digester upsets. This work 
was not originally included in the scope when budgeted, however, due to economy of scale it was 
in the Authority’s best interest to receive pricing on the work.   Staff would rather not sacrifice a 
portion of the work that has been designed over the past year, but if directed, staff will find a way 
to value engineer a reduction of the scope after award has been made.  The additional work was bid 
as an alternate, and came in at $120,000.   
 
This project will be paid for using an already approved low interest IEPA State Revolving Fund 
Loan, and will be paid back over 20 years at an interest rate of 1.39% starting six months after 
substantial completion of the project.  Therefore, the roughly 3% higher than budgeted amount has 
very little impact on the capital budget over the course of the loan repayment.  
 
The TAC agrees with the Authority’s recommendation to the EOC to motion to authorize the 
approval of the Notice of Intent to Award the 2020 Biosolids Dewatering Improvements 
Construction Contract to Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. for $2,085,000.00.  
 
Mr. Romza stated that in late October, a bid opening for the project was held with four (4) 
responsible bidders submitting bids that were within 10% of each other. Mr. Romza indicated that 
the lowest bid was approximately $5,000 above the Engineer’s estimates of $2,080,000; and while 
the original budgeted amount for the project was $1,895,000, Mr. Romza advised that during the 
design phase, GWA staff requested the addition of several improvements to the high strength waste 
receiving station, as this was an existing structure that was not designed to do the work it is doing. 
Mr. Romza explained that the modifications will increase revenue prospects, by reducing the 
amount of time staff has to spend locking and unlocking the receiving station for deliveries and 
provide better feed controls to the digester, reducing the risk of a digester upset. Mr. Romza advised 
that these modifications added approximately $120,000 to the cost of the project and, as this project 
will be funded through and IEPA SRF loan, the cost is minimal when spread out over the 20-year 
length of the loan.  
 
Mr. Romza stated that the TAC Committee had reviewed the proposals and was in agreement with 
making the recommendation to seek approval from EOC Committee for awarding the contract. 
 
Mr. Niehaus made the motion and Trustee Christiansen seconded to authorize the approval of 
the Notice of Intent to Award the 2020 Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Construction 
Contract to Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. for $2,085,000.00. President Giagnorio, 
President McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. 
Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried. 

 
10. Biosolids Dewatering Improvement Engineering Amendment #1 for Construction Phase 
 

After completing a successful design and bid of the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project, 
an amendment to perform Construction Engineering Services was requested from Trotter & 
Associates, Inc (TAI).  Due to the more than satisfactory performance by TAI, and their familiarity 
with the project, the Authority is proposing to waive the RFP process, as allowed by the 
professional services’ standard procedures, and utilize TAI for construction engineering services.  
After receiving a proposed amendment, the Authority negotiated the scope to allow for some 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

5 
 

savings since the Authority has the capability to perform some in-house construction engineering 
services.  The TAC agreed and also recommended this approach. 
 
After negotiations, the amendment is proposing an additional $104,400 (5% of construction cost) 
to perform part-time construction engineering services, which is a reduction from the original 
$135,900 for full-time services.  However, the amendment also proposes to deduct $202,600 from 
the original contract.  The purpose of the deduction is to remove the design of a thermal hydrolysis 
system from the scope after it was determined there was not a reasonable return on investment by 
including that item.  Therefore, the overall contract amount is actually being reduced $98,200, 
lowering it from $472,300 to $374,100.   
 
The Authority therefore recommends the EOC motion to authorize approving amendment number 
1 with Trotter & Associates for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Construction Engineering 
Services, reducing the contract by $98,200, bringing the authorized amount to $374,100.  The 
remaining funds on the contract are equal to the $104,400 required for the construction engineering, 
and this amount will be taken out of the designated amount in CY2021 Approved Budget, Fund 40 
Capital, which has a $100,000 budget number once formally approved. 
 
Mr. Romza explained that as a result of negotiations with Trotter & Associates on their proposal 
for construction oversight services for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvement project, by GWA 
doing some of the construction oversight work in house, the overall scope for Trotter & Associates 
work was lowered reducing GWA’s overall costs.  Due to part of the original scope being removed 
from the project though, although this amendment is adding in construction services, the contract 
will actually see a reduction in the amount of $98,200. 

 
Mr. Niehaus made the motion and Mr. Franz seconded to approve Amendment Number 1 of 
Trotter and Associates construction engineering contract decreasing the contract amount by 
$98,200 thereby decreasing the contract amount from $472,300 to $374,100. President 
Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith 
and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried. 

 
11. Request for Authorization to Approve Agreement for Programing Logic Controller (PLC)  

Installation 
 
Since the inception of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) at the 
Authority in the late nineties, we have utilized Allen Bradley Programmable Logic Controllers 
(PLC’s) to automate, control, and monitor the numerous process control aspects of the treatment 
facility. These PLC’s are approximately 20 years old, are at end of life, and discontinued by the 
manufacturer. Procurement of replacement PLC components due to failure, has become 
increasingly difficult to obtain and are very costly if they can be had. Based on the above stated 
needs, we are proposing upgrading our PLC and Communications System at the Bemis Road 
Facility at this time. 
 
The Authority is recommending moving forward with this PLC Replacement Project with 
Concentric Integration due to their unique qualifications.  They are the only firm the Authority is 
aware of that has the complete in-house capabilities to tackle the myriad of technical disciplines 
required for a project with this scope; IT, instrumentation, PLC, SCADA, Security, etc.  They also 
are in progress/have completed similar installations for Downers Grove Sanitary District and 
Northwest Joint Action Water Agency, and others local to the Authority. In 2016, the Authority 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

6 
 

undertook a similar project to replace our Remote Sites PLC’s and Leased-Line communication. 
Concentric Integration was selected to perform the replacement project, which they successfully 
accomplished. 
 
A proposal in the amount of $216,360 was received from Concentric Integration to perform the 
hardware replacement, programming, and provide documentation/As-Builts etc.  The Authority 
recommends the EOC motion to approve the authorization to enter into an agreement with 
Concentric as a professional service to install the PLCs for $216,360, contingent upon the 
approval of the CY21 Budget.  The CY21 Budget 40-580180 will be appropriately designated for 
such funds once approved. 

 
Mr. Streicher explained that earlier in the year, the EOC Committee had approved the purchase of 
replacement PLC equipment, and was advised at that time, that an approval request for installation 
services to be performed by an outside provider, would be forthcoming, which would be allocated 
to the CY2021 Budget, once approved by the GWA Full Board at the Annual meeting that evening. 
Mr. Streicher stated that while invoicing will be held until after the start of 2021, approving the 
contract now will give the contractor plenty of lead time to begin planning and be ready at the start 
at the first of the year to move forward with the installations. 
 
Mr. Goldsmith made the motion and Mr. Niehaus seconded to approve the perform hardware 
replacement, programming and provide documentation/As-Builts etc., from Concentric 
Integration to install the PLC’s in the amount of $216,360, and will be charged to 40-580180, 
contingent upon the approval of the CY2. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee 
Christiansen, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during 
a roll vote. The motion carried.  

 
12. Discussion 
 
 12.1 Capital Improvement Projects Update 
 
  Facility Improvement Project: 

Mr. Romza provided the following updates on the project: 
 
- a lot of work has been getting done and all of the pumps are running and 
most of the electrical items are finished finally; 
 
- GWA staff completed a preliminary punch list to keep Boller moving 
forward, which is being added to as time goes on; however, Boller is really 
making a dent in the list now and hopes they will be completed sometime 
in December. 
 
- the UV drain line work is complete with Boller working on the 
abandoning the old line that they broke. 
 
Generally, good news! 
 
Medium Voltage Electric Grid Update: 
Mr. Romza provided the following status: 
 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

7 
 

- Pre-construction has gone well.  GWA staff likes this contractor and the 
ability to communicate well. 
 
- Digging to begin today. 
 
Mr. Franz asked what the project time frame was. Mr. Romza indicated 
that the digging, installing of conduit and encasing in concrete will be 
completed within the next month or two and then over most of 2021, the 
contractor will begin replacing transformers for each and has a projected 
completion around September. 
 
Biosolids Dewatering Improvement Project: 
Mr. Romza provided the following status: 
 
- Bid opening took place – IMI was lowest bidder at a good  
 
Mr. Streicher explained that with the approval of the notice of intent to 
award that was previously approved, will be submitted to the with the final 
loan application to the IEPA for the SRF funding approval and do not 
anticipate any type of response from the IEPA for approximately 60-90 
days, which means there will not be any further movements on the project 
until the IEPA approves everything. 
 
Mr. Franz asked if, other than the ordinances approved by the Village 
Boards of both Villages, was needed from either of the Villages. Mr. 
Streicher advised that GWA is able to finance the project up to about 
$3,000,000, which is higher than the winning bid submitted for the project, 
and while engineering fees for the project could be rolled into the loan, 
GWA had budgeted funds to cover engineering costs, and will discuss with 
Christina Coyle if the plan to pay the engineering in this manner is the 
best approach. 
 
RE Hours: 
 
Mr. Romza indicated hours listed are solely time he has spent and do not 
reflect the many additional hours spent by GWA’s Superintendents 
overseeing various contractors. 
 
Mr. Romza highlighted that the increase in the number of hours spent on 
the FIP project, is not unusual given the amount of work being done to 
complete punch list items. 
 

13. Other Business 
 13.1 Technical Advisory Committee Updates 

13.2 Pending Agenda Items 
13.1 2021 EOC Meeting Schedule 

 
14. Next EOC Meeting – The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday, January  

14, 2021 at 8:00 a.m. via Zoom. 



EOC Meeting/November 2020 
Minutes 
 
 

8 
 

 
Mr. Streicher advised that due to the fact that the November EOC Committee meeting was held 
later in the month, there are no pending agenda items that warrant a December EOC Committee; 
however, Mr. Streicher did advise that a January 2021 meeting will be needed to approve multiple 
annual contracts in need of renewals. 
 
Mr. Franz made the motion to adjourn the October 8, 2020 EOC Committee and move to 
Executive Session for the purpose of discussing probable litigation without returning to Open 
Session, and Trustee Christiansen seconded the MOTION. President Giagnorio, President 
McGinley, Trustee Christiansen, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” 
during a roll call.  The motion carried.  The meeting adjourned at 8:25 a.m. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Gayle A. Lendabarker 
GWA Administrative Secretary 
 



EXPENDITURES: Check Date Paid Amount
Accounts Payable Warrant  1120-1 11/15/2020 205,887.98$              
Accounts Payable Warrant  1120-2 11/30/2020 252,921.13$              
Accounts Payable Warrant  1220-1 12/15/2020 120,699.04$              
Accounts Payable Warrant  1220-2 12/30/2020 250,436.46$              

829,944.61$              Warrant Total 829,944.61$              

PAYROLL EXPENDITURES: November 6, 2020 November 20, 2020 December 4, 2021 December 18, 2020 December 31, 2020

Net Employee Payroll Checks 35,627.74$             34,931.87$                35,584.25$            35,974.70$              37,785.46$                

Employee & Employer Payroll Deductions:
Employee Deductions* 18,662.81$             18,313.09$                18,552.38$            18,737.89$              16,985.92$                
IMRF - Employer contribution 4,566.69$               4,466.46$                  4,542.52$              4,599.65$                4,861.20$                  
Social Security/Medicare Tax Withheld - Employer portion 3,922.17$               3,857.51$                  3,910.41$              3,969.78$                4,189.99$                  

Total Payroll 62,779.41$             61,568.93$                62,589.56$            63,282.02$              63,822.57$                314,042.49$      

GRAND TOTAL 1,143,987.10$   

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS

For the meeting in January 2021





























 

 

 MEMORANDUM  

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
 
FROM: Gayle Lendabarker, Administrative Assistant 
  
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Request for Waiver of Bid and Authorization 

Year 1 or 3 Janitorial Service Contract Renewal 
 
 
In July 2020 GWA requested proposals for Janitorial Services based on five (3) days a week for 
Janitorial Services for three (3) years. 
 
Below are the proposal results: 

Vendor 
Weekly 

Price Monthly Yearly 
Vega Building Maintenance Inc. $265.00 $1,148.33 $13,780.00 
Bravo Services $270.00 $1,170.00 $14,040.00 
Eco Clean Maintenance $274.00 $1,187.33 $14,248.00 
Best Quality Cleaning Inc. $275.00 $1,191.67 $14,300.00 
Perfect Cleaning Service $280.25 $1,214.42 $14,573.00 
Detail-X-Perts $375.00 $1,625.00 $19,500.00 
Multi-System Management Company $430.00 $1,863.33 $22,360.00 

 
Vega Building Maintenance presented the lowest proposal of $1,148.33 per month for three day a 
week cleaning. The total cost of the contract is equal to $41,340  
 
In August of 2020 the EOC awarded the three (3) year contract to Vega Building Maintenance for the 
total amount of $41,340 over the three-year period.  GWA requests waiver of bid and authorization to 
continue into year 1 of 3 of the contract for the amount of $13,780 to be invoiced to account 270-
520971 during CY2021. 
 
 
 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee  
  
FROM: Tom Romza, P.E.  
  
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Request for Waiver of Bid and Authorization 
 Year 2 of 3 Flow Monitoring Services  
 

 
In November, 2019, the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (GWA) received proposals for flow 
monitoring services for the installation, operation, maintenance, monitoring, and leasing of 
sixteen (17) flow meters and four (4) rain gauges (lease only two [2] rain gauges) located 
throughout GWA’s owned interceptors. The EOC approved to enter into a second three-year 
contract with RJN Group, Inc. for flow monitoring services for the 2020-2022 period.  Language 
was included the proposal that gives the Authority the ability to withdraw from the agreement 
after each year so that if performance measures are not being met, GWA can withdraw from the 
contract with no consequence.  To date, the Authority has been very satisfied with the RJN 
Group, Inc., and wishes to continue with the contract.   
 
If approved, the year 2 of 3 of the flow monitoring services contract shall be invoiced to Fund 
270-520981, which has $132,000 budgeted for CY2021.  The contract amount numbers have 
been taken into account for future budgets as well.     
 
Please advise and thank you. 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
  
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent 
 Through Tom Romza, Assistant Executive Director 
 
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Request for Waiver of Bid and Authorization 

Sodium Thiosulfate Year Two of Three Contract Award 
 
The Glenbard Wastewater Authority posted the bid notification publicly through an 
advertisement to bid that was published in the Daily Herald on November 25, 2019.  The 
deadline for receipt of the sealed bids was December 20, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.   
 
At 11:00 a.m. the Glenbard Wastewater Authority Administrative Secretary had in her 
possession 2 unopened bid packets.  After opening the bid documents, reviewing the unit prices, 
and confirming that all required documentation was present, PVS Minibulk was the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder. While GWA does go out to bid every three years, PVS has been 
our long-term Sodium Thiosulfate provider due largely in part to the delivery requirements we 
have mandated and based on their proven performance record, GWA does not have any reason to 
deny them award of the new contract.  The Authority has been aware that both chemical costs as 
well as hauling costs have increased significantly since the last time this item was bid, and 
therefore had included an increased budget amount in the CY2021 budget to anticipate for the 
higher costs.  The low bid of $2.59/gallon is a 51% increase over the previous price of 
$1.72/gallon. 
 
 

Vendor Price Per Gallon Quoted 
Water Solutions Unlimited  $3.50/gallon 
PVS Minibulk $2.59/gallon 
Rowell Chemical Corp. No Bid 
Alexander Chemical Corp No Bid 
Viking Chemical Corp No Bid 

 

GWA recommends the EOC to waive bidding and authorization to enter into the second year of a 
three-year contract to PVS Chemical, Detroit MI for the purchase and delivery of Liquid Sodium 
Thiosulfate at $2.59 per gallon/delivered with the amount expensed to CY2021 O&M Budget 270-1-
530440. 

 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee  
  
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent 
 Through Tom Romza, Assistant Executive Director 
 
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Hypochlorite Extension Award Request 
 
 
The Glenbard Wastewater Authority posted the bid notification publicly through an 
advertisement to bid that was published in the Daily Herald on November 25, 2019.  The 
deadline for receipt of the sealed bids was December 18, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.   
 
At 11:00 a.m. the Glenbard Wastewater Authority Administrative Secretary had in her 
possession 3 unopened bid packets.  After opening the bid documents, reviewing the unit prices, 
and confirming that all required documentation was present, Alexander Chemical Corporation 
was the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. Alexander Chemical has been our Sodium 
Hypochlorite provider in the past.  To date, we do not have any reason to deny them award of the 
new contract. The previous price the Authority was paying competitively per gallon of Sodium 
Hypochlorite was $0.632 to Alexander Chemical Corporation from January 2017 until current. 
The Authority has been aware that both chemical costs as well as hauling costs have increased 
significantly since the last time this item was bid, and therefore had included an increased budget 
amount in the CY2020 budget to anticipate for the higher costs.  The low bid of $0.7101/gallon 
is a 12.4% increase over the previous price of $0.632/gallon. 
   
The bid tabulation sheet is attached for your review of the competitive bids received. 
 

Water Solutions Unlimited $1.20/gallon 

Rowell Chemical Corp $0.798/gallon 

Alexander Chemical Corp $0.7101/gallon 

Jones Chemical No Bid 

Southern Ionics Incorporated No Bid 

 
The Operations Staff requests the EOC to waiver bidding and award Alexander Chemical 
Corporation year two of the 3-year Sodium Hypochlorite supply contract for a unit price of 
$0.7101 per gallon delivered.  The cost of the Sodium Hypochlorite will be expensed to the 
Glenbard’s Stormwater Plant O&M CY 2021 budget line item 270-1 530440. 
 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee  
  
FROM: Matt Streicher P.E., BCEE 
   
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Request for Waiver of Bids and Authorization 

Year 5 of 5 Year Lease of Atmospheric Vaporizers and Airgas Liquid Oxygen 
Hauling Agreement. 

 
In October 2016, after detailed evaluation and analysis, as well as based on qualifications and 
price, the EOC approved to enter into a 5-year agreement with Airgas for the hauling of liquid 
oxygen at the proposed pricing structure in the below table: 
 

Year O2 Price Schedule (per 100 cubic feet) Delivery Charge 
1 $0.250 $15,600 
2 $0.258 $15,600 
3 $0.266 $15,600 
4 $0.274 $15,600 
5 $0.282 $15,600 

 
Also, in October 2016 the EOC formally approved entering into a contract with Airgas for the 
leasing of atmospheric vaporizers for the amount of $1,500 per month for the 5-year proposed 
liquid oxygen hauling schedule.  The leasing is a fixed cost per month.   
 
If approved, year 5 of 5 of the liquid oxygen hauling contract shall be invoiced to Fund 270-
530443.  If the leasing of the atmospheric vaporizers is approved, year 5 of 5 of that contract 
shall be invoiced to Fund 40 Capital Plan, which has $20,000 budgeted for CY2021.  Both 
numbers have been taken into account for future budgets as well.     
 
This contract is set to expire in April 2022, and therefore both the supply of liquid oxygen and 
the atmospheric vaporizer leasing will be rebid out next calendar year to obtain competitive 
pricing.   
 
Please advise and thank you. 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee  
  
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent 
 Through Matt Streicher, Executive Director 
  
DATE:  January 14, 2021 
  
RE: Request for open Purchase Order  

for Contract Laboratory Services 
 
 
The Authority Staff would like to request waiving of competitive bidding requirements per the Village 
of Glen Ellyn code, 1-10-2: EXCEPTIONS TO COMPETITIVE BIDDING. Per Administrative 
Order No. 3 Section “D” Professional Services – Section 3 the Authority is required to seek at least 
three competitive proposals. In 2020 the Operations and Laboratory staff have solicited three quotes 
for laboratory professional services. The quotes have been solicited from the following three qualified 
laboratories. 
 

Laboratory Price for One Calendar Year of Service 
Suburban Labs $16,800.00 
First Environmental Labs $15,847.20 
Teklabs $16,458.40 

 
The total cost of service includes Analysis for Permit Requirements and Process Samples. Only 
Permit requirements are mandated to be done by a certified lab.  
 
A summary sheet of work projected to be required is attached along with the submitted cost proposals 
from Suburban, First Environmental, and Teklabs. Due to superior performance and past history, 
Authority staff would prefer to select Suburban Labs, despite it not being the lowest overall quote.  
Since this is considered a professional service the basis was picked as a quality-based selection.  The 
summary sheet demonstrates that the prices quoted by Suburban Labs are within typical ranges, and 
results in projected work necessary of $16,800 for a one-year period.  This is a 32.8% decrease from 
when quotes were obtained in early 2017.  Although, the cost can be variable as call out work is 
required for the Stormwater Facility during rain events, as well as any extra sampling that might be 
required for our permit discharge or special condition on river sampling.  
 
This professional service is budgeted in the CY2021 O&M budget account #270-520806 Prof. Serv. 
Laboratory in the amount of $25,000. The Operations and Laboratory staff kindly requests the 
Executive Oversight Committee to approve an open purchase order for a not to exceed amount of 
$25,000 as budgeted. 
 

 





 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2021 
  
RE: Approve Authorization to enter into the Illinois Environmental Electric Supply 

Protection Agency (IEPA) State Revolving Fund (SRF) Low Interest Loan to  
 Fund the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project 
 
 
At the June 2020 EOC Meeting, the EOC approved the application for an IEPA SRF Low 
Interest Loan for the purposes of funding the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project.  After 
the bids for the project were received, and the notice of intent to award was approved by the 
EOC, the final application documents were sent to the IEPA.   
 
GWA recently received the enclosed paperwork providing notification that the loan has been 
approved in the amount of $2,490,750 at a 1.35% simple annual interest rate.  The loan is a 20-
year term with semi-annual repayments, which will begin after the project has reached 
substantial completion.  At this time, the project is expected to commence in late March/early 
April, with a substantial completion date in fall 2021. 
 
The breakdown of the eligible loan costs are as follows: 

- Design Engineering: $269,700.00 
- Construction Engineering: $104,400.00 
- Construction: $2,055,000.00 
- Contingency: $61,650.00 

 
$30,000 of the construction “allowances” were not eligible for loan participation, and therefore 
the Authority will use local funds to cover all allowance costs, if incurred.  The allowances were 
placed in the bid proposal simply so that additional EOC approvals would not be needed for any 
slight modification to the project scope, and therefore, it’s probable the allowances may not be 
used. If incurred, the Authority has budgeted for the expenditure.   
 
Although design and construction engineering are eligible to be financed using the loan, it is 
most likely the Authority will choose not to utilize the loan for those items, since those costs 
were already budgeted to be paid without assistance.  Furthermore, the design engineering fees 
have already been paid, so there is no need to finance them.   
 
The Authority respectfully requests the EOC motion to authorize GWA to enter into the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) State Revolving Fund (SRF) Low Interest Loan 
Agreement in the amount of $2,490,750 at a 1.35% simple annual interest rate.   

 























 

 

 MEMORANDUM  

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
 
FROM: Thomas Romza, P.E., Assistant Executive Director 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2021 
  
RE: Authorize GWA to approve Notice of Award and Agreement to Independent 

Mechanical Industries for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Project 
 
 
 
The 2021 Biosolids Dewatering Improvement project was projected by the design engineer, 
Trotter and Associates (Trotter), via the 98% completion Opinion of Probable Construction 
Costs (OPCC) to be $1,890,932 with a 10% contingency, for a total of $2,080,250.  
 
The bids opened on October 27th resulted in 4 bids from responsible contractors. A low bid of 
$2,085,000, which is 0.2% over Trotter’s OPCC and $13,000 less than the next lowest bid. 
 
The full bid results were:  

Company Base Bid Amount Percent Above Low Bid 

Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost $      2,080,025.00  - 
Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc.  $      2,085,000.00  - 
Joseph J. Henderson & Son, Inc. $      2,098,000.00  0.60% 
Manusos General Contracting, Inc. $      2,214,000.00  6.20% 
IHC Construction Companies, LLC. $      2,290,000.00  9.80% 

 
The EOC authorized the approval of the Notice of Intent to Award the Biosolids Dewatering 
Improvements Construction Contract to Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. for 
$2,085,000.00 at the November 19, 2020 EOC Meeting.  The notice of intent to award was 
required in order to submit the final loan application for the IEPA SRF Low Interest Loan that is 
planned to be used to finance the project.   
 
Providing item number 7 on this agenda is approved by the EOC, the TAC and the Authority 
recommend the EOC to motion to authorize the approval of the Notice of Award and Agreement 
for the Biosolids Dewatering Improvements Construction Contract to Independent Mechanical 
Industries, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,000.00.  
 



September 11th, 2020 00 51 00 - 1 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 

  GWA-008 

SECTION 00 51 00 – NOTICE OF AWARD 

 

Date:  March 11, 2021 

 

To: Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. 

2671 United Lane  

Elk Grove Village, IL, 60007 

(773) 282-4500  

 

Project:  Glenbard Wastewater Authority – 2020 Biosolids Dewatering Improvements 

Job Number: GWA-008 

 

The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described WORK in response to its 

Advertisement for Bids and Information for Bidders. 

 

You are hereby notified that your bid has been accepted for items in the amount of  

 

Two million, eighty-five thousand dollars and zero cents ($2,085,000.00). 

 

You are required by the information for Bidders to execute the Agreement and furnish the required 

CONTRACTOR’S Performance BOND, Payment BOND and certificates of insurance within ten (10) 

calendar days from the date of this Notice indicated above. 

 

If you fail to execute said agreement and to furnish said BONDS within ten (10) days from the date of this 

Notice, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER’S acceptance 

of your BID as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND.  The OWNER will be entitled to such 

other rights as may be granted by law. 

 

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER. 

 

Dated this 11 day of March, 2021. 

 

 ______________________________ 

Authorized Representative 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority 

 

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by Independent Mechanical 

Industries, Inc. this _____day of ______________________, 2021. 

 

 

      

 Name:  David W. Reynolds 

 Title:    President 

 

 

 

END OF SECTION 00 51 00 

  



September 11th, 2020 00 51 00 - 2 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 

  GWA-008 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 1 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

SECTION 00 52 00 - AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated as the 11th day of March in the year 2021 by and between the Glenbard 
Wastewater Authority (hereinafter called OWNER) and Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. 
(hereinafter called CONTRACTOR). 
 
OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows: 
 
Article 1.  WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR shall complete all WORK as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  
WORK is generally described as follows: 
 

A.  Biosolids Dewatering Improvements  

1. All required labor, supervision and materials to render complete and fully functional 
electrical, mechanical, and SCADA systems. 

2. Full time superintendence. 
3. Installation and maintenance of erosion control measures, site clearing and grading. 
4. Minor sitework modifications to the existing concrete driveway approaches, and high 

strength waste containment areas.  
5. Removal of the existing Gravity Belt Thickener 
6. Removal and replacement of HVAC equipment.  
7. Removal and replacement of non-potable water, sludge, filtrate, and drain lines.  
8. Removal and replacement of doors and windows. 
9. Removal, relocation, and reinstallation of the existing polymer units.  
10. Installation of new polymer tote system. 
11. Installation of new high strength waste receiving equipment.   
12. Rehabilitation of the existing two belt filter presses.  
13. Removal and replacement of the existing dewatered sludge conveyors. 
14. Installation and programing of electrical and control devices. 
15. Removal and replacement of fire alarm system.  
16. Site restoration and maintenance through acceptance and re-establishment of vegetation. 
17. Testing of systems and training of operations personnel.  
18. Preparation and submission of operations and maintenance manuals. 
19. Warranties as specified in the Contract Documents. 

 
 
Article 2.  ENGINEER 
 

Trotter and Associates, Inc. of St. Charles, Illinois (hereinafter called ENGINEER) will assume all 
duties and responsibilities and will have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the 
Contract Documents in connection with completion of the WORK in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

 
Article 3.  CONTRACT TIME 

 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 2 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

All WORK shall be substantially complete within Three Hundred and Thirty [330] calendar days 
after the date when the Contract Time commences to run as indicated in the Notice to Proceed and 
provided in Paragraph 2.03 of the General Conditions.  All work shall be at Final Completion and 
ready for Final Payment in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions within Three 
Hundred and Sixty [360] calendar days of the date when Contract Time commences to run.   
 

A.  Liquidated Damages.  OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of 
this Agreement and that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the WORK is not completed within 
the time specified in Paragraph 3 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with 
Article 12 of the General Conditions.  They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties 
involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by OWNER if 
the WORK is not completed on time.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, 
OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) 
CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER Two Thousand dollars and zero cents ($2,000.00) for 
each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3 for Substantial Completion until the 
work is fully operational and tested.  The CONTRACTOR shall pay the OWNER an additional 
Two Thousand dollars and zero cents ($2,000.00) for each day that expires after the time 
specified in Article 3 for final completion until the work is accepted by the OWNER.  Aggregate 
damages for time expired, past the time of final completion shall then be Four Thousand 
dollars and zero cents ($4,000.00).   At the option of the ENGINEER and OWNER damage 
amounts may be deducted, on a monthly basis, from the contract balance.  

 
B.  The contract time may be changed only by a change order.  For each change order, 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Engineer for review, sufficient reason for delay to enable 
the Engineer to ascertain the necessity and reasonableness of the delay, and the allowability and 
eligibility of delay proposed. 

 
Article 4.  CONTRACT PRICE 
 

OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for performance of the WORK in accordance with the Contract 
Documents in current funds as follows: 

 
A.  Payment shall be made on the basis of the monthly estimates of partial completion, approved by 

the ENGINEER, except as otherwise provided in the detailed specifications for each class of 
WORK. 

 
B.  The contract price may be changed only by a change order.  For each change order, 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Engineer for review, sufficient cost and pricing data to 
enable the Engineer to ascertain the necessity and reasonableness of costs and amounts 
proposed, and the allowability and eligibility of costs proposed. 

 
Article 5.  PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General 
Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by the ENGINEER as provided in the 
General Conditions. 
 

A.  Progress Payments.  OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on 
the basis of CONTRACTOR’s Applications for Payment as recommended by ENGINEER.  All 
progress payments will be on the basis of the progress of the WORK estimated by the 
ENGINEER. 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 3 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

 
1. Prior to Substantial Completion progress payments will be in an amount equal to 90% of 

the WORK completed, and 90% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the 
WORK but delivered and suitably stored, less in each case the aggregate of payments 
previously made. 

2. Upon Substantial Completion and thereafter, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to 
increase total payments to CONTRACTOR to 95% of the Contract Price, less such 
amounts as ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the 
General Conditions. 

 
B.  Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the WORK in accordance with 

Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract 
Price as recommended by ENGINEER as provided in said Paragraph 14.07. 

 
Article 6.  CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS 
 

In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement CONTRACTOR makes the following 
representation: 
 

A.  CONTRACTOR has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, 
WORK, locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the WORK. 

B.  CONTRACTOR has studied carefully all available reports of investigations and tests of 
subsurface and latent physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting cost, progress or 
performance of the WORK which were relied upon by ENGINEER in the preparation of the 
Drawings and Specifications and which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions. 

C.  CONTRACTOR has made or caused to be made examinations, investigations and tests and 
studies of such reports and related data in addition to those referred to in Paragraph 6.2 as he 
deems necessary for the performance of the WORK at the Contract Price, within the Contract 
Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no 
additional examinations, investigations, tests, reports or similar data are or will be required by 
CONTRACTOR for such purposes. 

D.  CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

E.  CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 
that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by 
ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR. 

F.  CONTRACTOR shall warrant that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 
solicit or secure the contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the OWNER shall have 
the right to annul the contract without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract 
price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee. 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 4 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

G.  The award or execution of all subcontracts by a prime CONTRACTOR and the procurement and 
negotiation procedures used by such prime CONTRACTOR in awarding or executing 
subcontracts shall comply with: 

1. All provisions of federal, State and local law, 
2. All provisions of Illinois Administrative Code Title 35 Part 365 regarding fraud and other 

unlawful or corrupt practices; 
3. All provisions of Illinois Administrative Code Title 35 Part 365 with respect to access to 

facilities, records and audit or records; and 
4. All provisions of Illinois Administrative Code Title 35 Part 365 that require a 

“Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters” 
(EPA Form 5700-49) showing compliance with federal Executive Oder 12549. 

B.  CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 
CFR Part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial 
assistance agreements.  Failure by the CONTRACTOR to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or other 
legally available remedies. 

C.  CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors are required to be registered with the DuPage County 
Building Official prior to issuance and commencement of work. Registration is valid for one 
year, and must be renewed if the PROJECT exceeds one year in duration. 

 
Article 7.  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between OWNER and 
CONTRACTOR are attached to this Agreement, made a part hereof and consist of the following: 

A.  This Agreement (Pages 1 to 6,  inclusive). 
B.  Exhibits to this Agreement 
C.  IEPA Guidelines 
D.  Payment and Performance Bonds 
E.  Notice of Intent to Award 
F.  Notice of Award 
G.  Notice to Proceed 
H.  General Conditions 
I.  Supplementary Conditions 
J.  Section 00 43 43 - Wage Rates Form 
K.  Specifications bearing the title “2020 Biosolids Dewatering Improvements – Glenbard 

Wastewater Authority” as prepared by Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
L.  Drawings, consisting of a cover sheet and all sheets as designated in SECTION 00 01 15 – List 

of Drawing Sheets, with each sheet bearing the title “2020 Biosolids Dewatering Improvements 
– Glenbard Wastewater Authority” as prepared by Trotter and Associates, Inc. 

M.  Addenda No’s 01 to 03, inclusive. 
N.  CONTRACTOR’s Proposal (Pages 1 to 14, inclusive). 
O.  Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award. 
P.  Any modification, including Change Orders, duly delivered after execution of Agreement. 

 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 5 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 7.  The Contract 
Documents may only be altered, amended or repealed pursuant to Section 3.04 of the General 
Conditions. 

 
Article 8.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A.  Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions shall 
have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 

B.  No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will 
be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; 
and specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due 
may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction 
may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract Documents. 

C.  OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party hereto, his partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract 
Documents. 

D.  All claims, counter-claims, disputes and other matters in question between the OWNER and the 
CONTRACTOR arising out of, or relating to this Agreement or the breach of it will be decided 
by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the 
State of Illinois. 

E.  The responsibilities/liabilities of the Authority and the Contractor and their consultants, agents 
and employees and any concomitant damages and/or consequential damages shall be determined 
in such amount and to such extent as provided by Illinois law. 

F.  Contractor shall pay all reasonable attorney’s fees, expert’s fees, and costs incurred by the 
Authority in enforcing the terms and provisions of this Agreement and in defending any 
proceeding to which the Authority is made a party as result of the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor.  

G.  Any claims shall be commenced within the limitations stated in 735 ILCS 5/13-214. 

 



September 11th, 2020 00 52 00 - 6 Trotter and Associates, Inc. 
  GWA-008 

Article 9.  OTHER PROVISIONS 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in triplicate.  One 
counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER, CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER.  All portions of 
the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR. 

 
This Agreement becomes effective as of March 11th, 2021. 

 
 OWNER   CONTRACTOR 
 GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY   INDEPENDENT MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES, INC. 
 
 
 
by 

   
 
 
by 

 

 Authorized Representative   David W. Reynolds, President 
  

 
   

 (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 

  (Corporate Seal) 

 
 Attested   Attested 
 
 
 
by 

   
 
 
by 

 

     
     
    (Notary Seal) 

 
 
 Address for Giving Notices   Address for Giving Notices 
  

Glenbard Wastewater Authority 
945 Bemis Rd 
Glen Ellyn, IL, 60137 
(630) 790-1901 
 

   
Independent Mechanical Industries, Inc. 
2671 United Lane  
Elk Grove Village, IL, 60007 
(773) 282-4500  
 

 
 
END OF SECTION 00 52 00 





 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Executive Oversight Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2021 
  
RE: Electric Supply Procurement 
 
 
The Authority’s Electric Supply contract expires February, 2022, at which time the existing 
contract would automatically revert to the default supplier, ComEd.  Typically, electric supply 
can be procured for cheaper rates.  This could result in significant price increases for the 
Authority unless a new contract is secured prior to the existing contract’s expiration.  Due to the 
rapid market changes and the inability to secure prices for not much more than a day, it would be 
in the best interest of the Authority and the EOC if the Executive Director were able to secure 
prices when they appear to be at their lowest point. Therefore, following the success of the EOC 
approved Natural Gas and Electricity procurement practice utilized in October/November 2014, 
July 2017, and again most recently with Natural Gas in 2020, the Authority is requesting that the 
Executive Director be provided the ability to secure prices for Electric Supply when they appear 
to be at their lowest point. The existing Electric Supply contract that expires in February 2022 
was a four-year contract.  Although recently proposed rates have shown similar pricing for three-
year contracts, it’s been advised by several parties to re-engage in another four-year contract due 
to predicted electric rate increases over the next four years based on current federal 
administration goals.  Therefore, unless the Authority sees a significant realization of cost 
savings by engaging in a three-year contract, the goal would be to enter into another four-year 
contract 
 
The selection process as requested is outlined below: 
 

1. Receive quotes from all qualified Electric suppliers. 
2. Identify and confirm the lowest three- or four-year contract prices. 
3. Have legal do a review of the contract. 
4. The Executive Director will sign the contract documents. 
5. Contract Documents and Information about the Electric supplier presented to the 

EOC in the consent agenda at the next scheduled EOC meeting. 
 
This process provides the Authority with the best means to acquire the lowest pricing in the most 
efficient manner.  This information was also previously described to the EOC at the September 
2020 meeting when the Natural Gas contract was secured.  The TAC is agreement with this 
approach, as it allows the Authority to capitalize on market opportunities.  It is requested that the 
EOC motion to authorize the Executive Director to secure Electric supply when rates are at or 
below our existing rate of $0.0436/kWh (transmission fees not included). 
 

 













 
 
 

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority 
945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137 

Telephone: 630-790-1901 – Fax: 630-858-8119 

GWA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting Agenda 
 February 17, 2021 2:30pm   
 
 

1. Electric Contract 
GWA’s existing Electric Supply contract expires in February 2022, so staff has begun getting prices for the 
next contract.  We have been getting quotes for a few weeks, and this price is very low at the moment. 
Spring and Fall tend to be the favorable seasons. We intend to request that we get authorization from the 
EOC to enter into a 4-year contract. We are thinking that we want a 4-year contract instead of the 
traditional 3 year contract because the Biden administration might drive the prices a bit higher as green 
energy will be more expensive in the future. Carl asked if we are permanently locked in to this price or if 
there is significant fluctuation can it be reassessed. With Electric contracts, when we lock in a price, it is 
locked in for the period of the contract. We are asking to lock in as long as the quote price is below our 
current price of $04.4 per kwH. Julius stated that if we are at historic lows, it likely won’t go much lower, 
so it’s agreed the next few months may be the most ideal time to lock in rates. TAC agrees that we should 
strike while we have favorable prices. Matt – only downside is this will make our ROI of the CHPs longer.  

2. Other Business 
a. FIP Update 

i. Substantial/Final Completion 
Some submittals and other paperwork are still needed and there is still seepage in the 
basement of the new raw building. They have been trying to stop the seepage but have 
been so far unsuccessful. Julius – is there pumping required to keep ahead of the water?  
Matt informed the TAC that this is really just seepage and it doesn’t even really make it 
to the sump.  It may seem petty, but this is a new structure, so it should be completely 
dry. We are not granting final completion until the seepage stops.  

b. Electrical Grid Construction Update 
Unfortunately, the contractor has gotten slowed down significantly the past couple weeks due to 
the weather. But the submittals and planning has continued. They plan to have two crews later to 
make up some of the time. Carl – have they asked for any kind of extension yet? No, they asked 
for a milestone extension, but not a final completion extension. There was a work change 
directive (WCD) issued to test the MEG readings of a few of the 480V lines beyond what the 
original scope called for.  MEG testing determines the condition of the line and if it’s still usable.  
The total WCD was $920. The WCD was approved by Matt, as at this time there is still a credit on 
the project from a previous change order. 

c. Biosolids Dewatering  
We are expecting the loan agreement from the IEPA any day, and then we will give the official 
notice of award and notice to proceed at the March EOC meeting, with schedule to be completed 
by October. Trotter has already started reviewing some submittals and plans to do precon photos 
on 2/18/2021 

d. SCICorp Proposal  
They have an additive to the waste stream and digesters, that claims to increase the productivity 
of the plant. The cost was $324k/year but they claimed we would see a savings of $336k/year in 
operational costs. Carl suggested last meeting that we get a performance-based pilot proposal.  
SCICorp did revise their pilot proposal to include additional discounts, however, it was still 
estimated to be around $30k, which is a substantial portion of our “chemicals” budget.  We got a 
sample of product and did notice a reduction in smell, and a significant reduction of hydrogen 
sulfide (H2S) production. If we added this to the digester only, we could increase gas production 



and decrease H2S production, which would save us on the H2S scrubbing media for the CHP’s. So 
for $30k we could possibly add this to the digesters and get the benefits. Carl – is there any 
references for this that are local? There is a plant in St. Louis that we haven’t reached out to 
directly. Matt agreed he should reach out to other clients first.  Julius – would this be for this 
coming summer? Yes. Julius – would we stop the peroxide dosing? No, because that is for odor 
control and significantly less money. Carl – is there other products that do the same thing, they 
are selling this as an odor control product on their website? Yes, there is many our there, but the 
significant H2S reduction we saw is the real benefit for this product. It is a little expensive to be 
used just for odor control. We are going to have to change out the media soon and extending the 
media life is a huge benefit. Julius – if there is a cost benefit, then do it. Matt – we do not need 
this product to improve plant performance, as we already remove 99% of what we’re required to 
with no issues, however Matt still feels possible to get some good benefit by adding it to the 
digesters.  Essentially, Matt feels he’d like to give it a try, there’s just a bit of uncertainty for the 
cost associated.  The TAC agrees this needs to be thought about more, and have references 
checked.  We will check references and regroup on the next meeting.  

e. Biosolids Hauling  
Next Friday we are opening bids for a new 3 year hauling contract. We have 5 plan holders and 
should see some competitive bids. The RFP called for the same situation we currently have with 
daily hauling instead of stockpiling on site.  The stockpiling caused odor issues in the past. After 
the bid opening, the results with be emailed to the TAC to get a consensus before we put it on the 
March EOC agenda.  

f. Flow Metering flow split 
i. Locations of Lombard Sewers that go directly into CSO 

ii. CSO Metering 
Tom has been investigating this heavily in an attempt to get RJN to investigate meter 
anomalies more seriously since it appears there is some invalid data in the information 
we receive for flow billing.  Upon further investigation, GWA discovered that flow going 
into CSO has not been incorporated into the flow split combination.  This is no fault of 
RJN’s, but it appears this has been the situation for quite some time.  Therefore, it 
appears the flow through the CSO plant is not being included in flow billing, which could 
have a considerable effect on the flow split calculations during wet weather months.  
Carl asked some questions in regards to flow routes and meter locations, and ultimately 
it was determined that Lombard’s flow going into the CSO facility has never been part of 
the flow split equation.  This could be a considerable amount of flow being missed, so it 
was determined that after more facts and information are gathered, the Village 
managers should be involved in this discussion.    

g. Hydraulic Modeling 
Data has been handed over to RJN for their use in the model, RJN is also working on fixing issues 
with the meter data, as mentioned in the above agenda item.  We don’t expect to see the final 
model anytime soon, but RJN is working on it. 

h. March EOC Meeting 
i. New Forklift  

Several previous agenda items will be included on the March EOC agenda, as well as an 
item for a new fork lift.  The VOGE Fleet Superintendent agreed with the need to replace 
the existing forklift. Matt also asked Carl on how to insert the items from the phone poll 
in the agenda in order to ratify them.  Matt will send a draft agenda to the group prior 
to releasing it.   

 
3. Old Business 

a. Exhibits and language for Village/GWA Connection points at    
i. VGE – Chidester vs St. Charles Rd. Lift Station 

ii. VOL – L22 vs Junction Chamber 
iii. CSO Regulators and lines between the regulators to the facility 
iv. Any others that can be added 

Matt has sent the information to Bob Minix for review. 




	EOC March 2021 Agenda - FINAL
	GWA Mar 2021 EOC Meeting Packet - 030321
	Directors January Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	December CHP Report
	Return on Investment Monetary Breakdown

	GWA Mar 2021 EOC Meeting Packet - 030321
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	GWA EOC-January 2021 Vouchers Report
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	GWA EOC-February 2021 Vouchers Report
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	2021 Forklift Packet 3.11.2021
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	Bio Solids Disposal Memo 3.11.2021
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	2021.03.02 Memo to MS for CHP Parts
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	1 EOC November 2020 Minutes - DRAFT
	2 GWA EOC Vouchers Report-January 2021 Meeting
	3 Janitorial Service Contract Renewal 2.4.21
	4 2021.2.4 Memo for Authorization for year 2 of 3 Flow Monitoring
	5 Sodium Thiosulfate Three Year Contract Award 2.4.21
	6 Hypochlorite Year Two of Three Year Contract Award Request 2.4.2021
	7 Memo for Authorization for Year 5 of 5 Leasing of Atmospheric Vaporizers and LOX Hauling
	8 Request for Open Laboratory Services PO 2.4.21
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	1 Authorization to approve loan 3.11.2021
	2 IEPA Loan Agreement Cover Letter
	3 IEPA Loan Agreement
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	Biosolids Dewatering Notice of Award Request 3.11.2021
	00 51 00 - Notice of Award
	00 52 00 - Agreement Form
	A.  Biosolids Dewatering Improvements

	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	Electric Supply Procurement 3.11.2021
	Mar 2021 Section Headings
	TAC Meeting Minutes 2.17.21
	Mar 2021 Section Headings





